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DTE Energy delivers certainty in these uncertain times.

Our industry is undergoing a revolution of change. It's an environment where only

the best companies provide year-in, year-out total shareholder returns — companies
like DTE Energy that think smart and act smart. This is nothing new for us. The
evolution of DTE Energy spans almost a century. We have a solid track record of
making the right decisions at the right time. While we are transforming in exciting new

ways, the fundamentals remain intact. When you invest in DTE Energy, you get results.

We provide energy you can count on — year after year.

Anthony F. Earley, Jr.
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer
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Business

Electric
{Detroit Edison)

Natural Gas
{MichCon)

Transmission
{Internatienal Transmission Company)

Overview

Generates and distributes electricity
throughout Southeastern Michigan.

Purchases, stores and distributes natural gas
throughout Michigan.

Transmits electricity as part of the Midwest
Independent System Operator (MISO).

Customers

2.1 million residential, commercial
and industrial customers as well as retail
marketers.

1.2 million residential, commercial
and industrial customers as well as
retail marketers.

Detroit Edison, retail marketers and other
transmission dependent companies.

Fuel Management & Energy Marketing

Business

Energy Trading

Midstream Gas & Supply

Coal Services

Power Generation

OQverview

Markets and trades electricity and
natural gas.

Operates more than 1,100 Antrim gas wells;
owns and operates extensive natural gas
gathering, processing and storage facilities;
owner in several strategic pipelines linking
the Midwest, Northeast and Canada.

Provides coal sourcing and transportation,
coal tolling services; rail car maintenance,
repair, sourcing and fleet management; coal
and emissions trading.

Owns and operates independent power
plants that generate energy for sale on the
open market and/or to energy traders under
long-term contracts.

Customers

Wholesale custamers, retail suppliers and
other energy trading firms.

Gas wholesalers, marketers, utilities,
aggregators, trading companies and pipeline. -
customers who transport large volumes of

gas on behalf of other customers.

Utilities, independent power producers and - -
industrial customers in North America; own-
ers and operators of rail fleets; rail shippers.

Utilities, independent power producers and
energy-intensive businesses.

Business

On-site Projects

Landfill Gas Recovery

Coke Batteries

Synfuel Facilities

Energy Projects & Services

Qverview

Develops, owns, operates and maintains
on-site energy projects, including
cageneration, powerhouses, backup
generation, heating and cocling services,
waste water treatment, compressed air and
other utility services.

Recovers landfill gas to produce steam,
electricity and pipeline quality gas.

Owns and operates coke facilities.

Owns and operates synfuel facilities.

Customers

Energy-intensive companies {industrial,
commercial and institutional).

Landfill owners, utilities and industries
located close to landfills.

Steel industry.

Coke producers, utilities and independent
power producers.

Business

Distributed Generation

Venture Capital Investments

Energy Technology

Overview

Markets and distributes a broad portfolio
of distributed generation products; provides
application engineering; monitors and
manages system operations.

Invests venture capital in new
energy technologies.

Customers

Retail, commercial, institutional, industrial
and residential customers; utilities,
municipalities, cooperatives and
government agencies.

DTE Energy Shareholders.

DTE Energy 2001 Annual Report 3



Financial Highlights

Earnings @@@W as promised

‘ 2001 2000 % Change
(Dollars in Millions, except per share amounts)
Operating Revenues
Electric Utility $ 4,051 $ 4129 (1.9)
Gas Utility €03 - -
Non-regulated Operations 3,195 1,468 1176
$§ 7849 $ 5597 40.2
Net Income
Electric Utility $ 369 S 427 (13.6)
Gas Utility 23 - -
Non-regulated Operations 162 84 929
Corporate & Other {18) (27) 333
536 484 10.7
Merger and Restructuring Charges {175) {16) -
MCN Energy Goodwill Amartization {29) - -
$ 332 $ 468 (29.1)
Diluted Earnings per Share
Electric Utility $ 24D T8 299 (19.7)
Gas Utility 0.15 - -
Non-regulated Operations 1.03 0.59 78.0
Corporate & Other (0.12) (0.19) 36.8
3.4 3.39 27
Merger and Restructuring Charges (1.93) (0.12) -
MCN Energy Goodwill Amortization (0.99) - -
§° 2.6 $ 3727 (33.9)
Dividends Declared per Share ] 2.03 $ 206 -
Dividend Yield 4.9% 5.3% (71.5)
Average Common Shares Qutstanding (Millions)
Basic 183 143 1.0
Diluted 124 143 1.7
Book Value per Share § 2843 $ 2814 1.2
Market Price at Year End $ 4.5 $ 3894 1.7
Total Market Capitalization $ G758 $ 5554 21.7
Capital Expenditures $ 1023 $ 749 46.3
Total Assets $ 19,228 $ 12,656 51.9
System Sales (kWh-Millions) 50,2638 52,408 {4.1)
_ .55
R =
o 850
5&=a‘ ki
[T Non-regulated (1 Regulated

Non-regulated earnings increased due to growth and expansion of those businesses, while regulated earnings were impacted by
economic conditions and weather.

* Excludes merger and restructuring charges, and goodwill amortization.
4 www.dteenergy.com
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DTE Energy Chairman and Chief Executive..
Officer Tony Earley.

We are strategically and financially positioned for SUCCESS

Radical change. Constant metion. Turbulence. Transformation. Revolution. That's the
world we live in. That's the energy industry today. Qur job is te manage within that world

and minimize the risk investors face.

Evolution implies steady improvement. Growth.
The unfolding of something new. That's DTE Energy.

Evolution amid revolution.

We have a solid track record of meeting our commitments
to you. Itis backed by more than a century of service, a
disciplined growth strategy and a dynamic portfolio

of businesses.

When you invest in DTE Energy, you get results
- year after year. We worked extremely hard to
reach our 2001 earnings target of $3.50 per share,

excluding goodwill amortization and costs related to our
merger with MCN Energy. And we ended the

year just 2 cents short. That's a major achievement
considering the tough conditions we faced throughout
the year. Many factors were at play. New competition.
Growing environmental pressures. Backlash from the
California energy crisis. Merger integration challenges.
An electric rate freeze. Volatile fuel prices. Recession
and war. Still, we delivered on our promise to you.

We reported 2001 earnings of $536 million, or $3.48 per
diluted share. This excludes the impact of merger and

DTE Energy 2001 Annual Report




restructuring charges, and goodwill amortization. Earnings
for the year 2000, excluding merger charges, were
$484 million, or $3.39 per diluted share.

Including merger charges and goodwill amortization,
DTE Energy reported 2001 earnings of $332 million, or
$2.16 per diluted share. This compares to 2000 earnings
of $468 million, or $3.27 per diluted share.

The weak economic climate and mild weather in the
fourth quarter hurt both our electricity and gas sales.
But as a result of targeted cost reduction programs
throughout the company and increased earnings
growth in our non-regulated subsidiaries, our company

met its performance commitments.

For the year 2001, DTE Energy stock provided a total
return of 13 percent. This ranking placed us second out
of the 29 companies in the Standard & Poor’s Electric
Utility Index. DTE Energy and just four others in the
index showed a positive stock return for the year.

We had a goed year. It was marked by many
highlights. Tops among them was our merger with
MCN Energy. After two long years of planning and
waiting, we completed the transaction on May 31, 2001.
Then we began a sweeping effort to integrate bath
companies and realize the many synergies that made
the transaction so appealing.

We began consolidating our infrastructure, combining
overlapping organizations and streamlining operations.
We also said goodbye to more than 1,200 employees
who opted to take early retirement and voluntary
separation packages.

As a result of recent electric restructuring legislation in
Michigan, we issued $1.75 billion in securitized bonds to
refinance existing financial obligations. Sale of these

bonds gave us the resources to pass along savings to

& www.dteenergy.com

customers. By year end, all Detroit Edison residential
and business customers were enjoying a 5-percent

rate reduction.

At the same time, our plants continued to improve
operations. Detroit Edison’s Fermi 2 nuclear power
plant remained a top industry performer operating
518 of 521 days between fueling outages.

Detroit Edison’s fossil fleet reduced random outage
rates during the summer months to a five-year low,

a 30-percent improvement during that time period.

This was the direct result of the company's long-term
equipment reliability program. This is important
because the lower our outage rate, the less we have
to buy at spot power prices. Our subsidiary, Midwest
Energy Resources Company (MERC), for the eighth
consecutive year, moved a record amount of low-sulifur
Western coal throughout the Great Lakes region.

On the energy distribution side of the business, we
implemented new processes to manage operations more
efficiently. We increased line clearance productivity
16 percent. This improves the impact major storms
have on our wires and poles. We also improved the
timeliness of new connections 12 percent.

MichCon also ended the year with an impressive record
of achievements, including a leak response time of

23 minutes, seven minutes faster than the industry
standard. Operating efficiency remained a focus.

Costs to operate MichCon's transmission pipelines, gate
stations and meter stations were 10 percent lower in
2001 than the prior year.

During 2001, the company expanded its reach through
agreements with three natural gas-fired independent

power producers in Michigan and cur own subsidiary,
DTE Energy Resources, to provide gas storage and

transportation services. In addition, we completed



the final phase of construction of the 344-mile Vector
Pipeline. The international pipeline, owned in part by
DTE Energy Gas, transported 250 billion cubic feet of
gas — or 98 percent of total capacity — during its first

full year in operation.

Our non-regulated energy management businesses had
a very strong showing in 2001. We expanded aur
synfuel program, processing 2.3 million tons of coal.
We own a total of nine synfuel facilities, four of them
under construction. We began construction of on-site
energy projects at General Motors’ engine plant in
North Tonawanda, N.Y., and assembly plant in Moraine,
Ohio. We nearly doubled our DTE Coal Services profits.
We continued to grow our energy trading operation,
-including the addition of coal and emissions trading.

And we successfully launched our 32nd biomass landfill
gas recovery project.

A dynamic portfelio of businesses fuel our
growth. Among our future expectations for growth is
our non-requlated energy technology business focused
on distributed generation (DG). DG allows individual
homeowners and businesses to generate power at or
near the point of use. Our DTE Energy Technologies
subsidiary broadened its portfolio of DG products
through partnerships with world class companies.

[t launched an operations center to monitor DG systems
around the clock. Itis also expanding its sales and
distribution network worldwide to places such as
Europe and Asia.

What makes our complete package of non-regulated
businesses so exciting is how they complement each
other and leverage our unique strengths as a company.
DG is a good example. DTE Energy Technologies can
leverage the fuel supply and expertise of DTE Energy
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Trading and DTE Energy Gas to provide more complete

energy solutions to our customers.

On-site energy projects also take advantage of our many
capabilities across business lines. Using DTE Energy's
power plant expertise, DTE Energy Services constructs
or operates on-site energy projects for large industrial
customers. Natural gas to fuel these projects is
supplied by DTE Energy Trading or DTE Energy Gas.

Our energy management businesses are expected
to fuel DTE Energy's growth in the near to midterm.
Then distributed generation and other emerging
technologies could become substantial contributors

to our company’s growth.

A disciplined strategy guides our growth.
Our goal is to provide sustained earnings growth

in the 6 percent to 8 percent range.

Although the current economic downturn may impact
the rate of new business growth, we will pursue four
strategies to meet our target: 1) achieving core business
excellence; 2) creating continued new business growth;
3) becoming the premier integrator of distributed
generation technologies; and 4) creating a
performance-focused culture.

Achieving core business excellence involves:

o Realizing our merger synergy targets and continuing
to consolidate infrastructure.

o Developing and deploying the DTE Energy Operating
System. This is an approach to running our businesses
that borrows from the practices auto companies and
others used to create highly efficient organizations.
The DTE Energy Operating System will help us
streamline operations and standardize processes to
run more effectively. The system will be vigorously
pursued in 2002.

e Continuing to manage the challenges arising from
Electric Choice. We must find ways to profitably

8 www.dteenergy.com

serve both customers seeking energy and delivery

services, and those requiring only delivery services.
We must also capture the profit potential of
wholesale energy available as a result of reduced
requirements to provide retail energy.

o Balancing customer service and regulatory
performance goals. We must maintain the highest
levels of service and performance to meet and

exceed customer expectations.

We must also create new opportunities for our

company to grow. This involves:

o Implementing our plan to expand our energy
management businesses across the board.

o identifying growth prospects that leverage our
integrated gas and electric capabilities.

o [dentifying development investment opportunities.

© Profitably integrating our new gas trading operation
into DTE Energy Trading.

A third growth strategy is becoming the premier

integrator of DG. To get there we must:

© Meet product development and sales goals,
and timetables.

o Provide the right mix of products and services to
meet all of our customers’ DG needs.

© Continue to build partnerships with world
class companies.

o Meet all financial targets. This business, established
in 1998, recorded 2001 sales of $19.3 million, with a
goal to more than double sales in 2002. We expect it
to be profitable in 2003.

Our fourth growth strateqy is creating a performance-
focused culture that supports our business goals.

We want all our employees to view themselves as
business partners in delivering results. That means
sharing in the risks and rewards.

We face many challenges in 2002. One of the most
difficult will be riding out the recession. We expect




DTE Energy’s Diversified Business Portfolio

DA

1997 2001 2005
Projected
T3 Regulated Utilities T Fuel Management Energy Projects =33 Energy Technology
and Energy Marketing

DTE Energy’s non-regulated businesses represented $162 million, or 30 percent of net income in 2001, excluding the impact of
merger and restructuring charges, and goodwill amortization. They are expected to represent more than 40 percent of net
income by 2005.

continued weakness in the commercial and industrial And we have the passion, the fortitude and the
segments of our electric utility business at least through  resources to excel in the 21st century.

the first half of the year. In addition, we must cope

with the impact of customer choice in our electric Watch us grow.

and gas utilities. 3@\ Z %
But we also face many exciting opportunities to hasten ;

the transformation of our company. We have a sound Anthony F. Earley, Jr.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
January 31, 2002

and proven strategy. We have a strong portfolio of
businesses — diverse, but complementary. We have a
healthy balance sheet. \We have a dynamic leadership

team. We have a creative and dedicated work force.

DTE Energy 2001 Annual Report @




0 & A with ChiefEinaneial-8fficer — =

Senior Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer
Dave Meador.

- SOLp

Why is DTE Energy a good investment? Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Dave Meador explains what makes DTE Energy the right cheice for you.

Q: What makes DTE Energy a better investment than
other energy companies?

A: We believe we have a unique investment profile.
The majority of our business consists of two utilities —
our electric company, Detroit Edison, and our gas
company, MichCon. These are well run, stable

businesses that provide cash flow to fund our dividend.

Our dividend yield, given our stock price today, is
around 5 percent. If you add to that our growth rate
(a range of 6 percent to 8 percent), we have a very
attractive return - in the 11-12 percent range.

10 www.dteenergy.com

On the non-regulated side, we stick to our core
competencies — energy project-based businesses —
and grow in a controlled manner. We don't take
excessive risk. In 2001, 30 percent of our operating net
income {excluding merger and restructuring charges,
and goodwill amortization) was non-regulated and that
will grow to more than 40 percent by 2005.

The third area that makes us different is our energy
technology work. We think that in the long term, our
DTE Energy Technologies subsidiary will be a unique
force in this industry.

@: Is it realistic to target an 8-percent growth rate in
today’s economy?
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A: This is a long-term objective and we believe the
recession will be short term in nature. The key is
aligning employee compensation with performance and
putting other controls in place to help us pursue growth
in a responsible manner. Ancther key is maintaining a
strong balance sheet.

I think the whole industry went overboard on growth
and the stock market went overboard on technology.
Now people are beginning to understand that some of
the higher growth companies brought an extreme
amount of risk with them. We're not willing to do that.
We think there's going to be a major recalibration of
industry market expectatians, with growth rates in the

4 percent to 10 percent range as opposed to 10 percent
to 20 percent range.

@ How has DTE Energy’s stock performed over time
compared to others in the industry?

A: We've done very well versus our peers in the two
indices we track — the Dow Jones Electric Utility Index
and the Standard & Poor’s Index. Our stock price,
combined with our dividend, provided a total return of
13 percent in 2001 and 29 percent in 2000.

Our performance over time is generating credibility. Investors
are recagnizing our stability and risk-adjusted growth.

DTE Energy 2001 Annual Report 11




@: What are your earnings projections for 2002?

A&: Our target for 2001 was $3.50 per share, excluding
goodwilt amortization and one-time merger-related
costs. Building off that, we set a 2002 target of
$4.10-84.20, in line with our 6 percent to 8 percent
long-term growth target.

These projections, however, were made before the
recession hit. Since then, our electric load has dropped
significantly and not fully recovered. Also, with the start
of customer choice, it is difficult to predict how much
load will be lost. As a result, we adjusted our target to
a broader range of $3.70-$4.00 to reflect the economic
uncertainty we expect in 2002. This target is predicated

on a shorter recession with a rebound in the second

halif of 2002. We're still optimistic this will happen.

Five key variables, could affect our ability to meet this
target: 1} achieving merger synergies; 2) growing
non-regulated businesses to plan; 3) the length and
depth of the recession; 4) the weather; and 5) the
impact of customer choice.

@: What will be the largest contributors to earnings growth?

A: Qur non-regulated businesses are expected to ramp
up to $170-$190 million in net income for 2002 from

$162 million in 2001. The largest contributor is expected
to be coal-based fuels, primarily our synfuel operations.
We also have high expectations for our trading business.
While our distributed generation business will not
contribute earnings in 2002, it will produce enough
revenue from products and services in 2002 to cover its
field sales and distribution network expenses.

Value of $100 Invested

Total Return - Dividends Reinvested
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The company’s performance in 2001 outpaced the Standard & Poor's Electric Utility Index. DTE Energy's stock price, combined
with its dividend, provided a total return of 13 percent for the year.
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Our ability to grow these businesses as planned, and

the length and depth of the recession — among other

variables — could affect the results of these businesses.
@: How do your utilities support your growth strategy?

&: In January 2002, MichCon returned to a fuel clause
gas cost recovery mechanism. That means it passes
the cost of gas to its customers and generates profit
only from a delivery charge. MichCon’s challenge in
2002 will be to maintain excellent levels of customer
service and a safe environment for its employees, while

streamlining operations to drive efficiencies.

On the electric side of the business, we are entering
our first full year of rate freeze. It's also the first full
year of customer choice. Our challenge and opportunity
is closely managing fuel and purchased power costs,
running our plants well, and maintaining high levels of
customer satisfaction.

Operating as a commercial business in this rate freeze
environment is no easy task, but we're not sitting still.
We purchased, in advance and at favarable prices,
virtually all of our peak electricity requirements for 2002,
as well as most of our coal requirements for the year.

We are also focused on managing our plants well so
they are available when we need them. In 2001, we
proactively invested in those plants so that they are in
a higher state of readiness.

Q: What is your investment strategy when it comes to
new businesses?

A: We take a very disciplined approach to our
investments. We look at three dimensions: return
on investment, payback and risk.

We're just as pleased about the opportunities we walk

away from as we are the deals we close. We're very

careful about the risks we assume as we grow earnings.
This supports our investment thesis of growth at a
reasonable risk. If we don't find investments that meet
our very specific criteria, we won't spend the money.
Instead, we may buy back stock or pay down debt to
keep our balance sheet strong.

@ What kinds of new investments fit your growth strategy?

A: They must be energy related, and complement our
core competencies and skills. We're not going to buy a
telecom or Internet business, for example. They don‘t

play off our strengths as a company.

Q: What is your vision of the company in 2002/2003?

A: We will balance several priorities. One is continuing
to integrate the operations of MichCon and Detroit Edison.
Another is servicing our customers well. A third
priority is growing our bottom fine while
maintaining a healthy balance sheet.

@: What are your balance sheet targets?

A: We have an objective of remaining a solid
investment grade rating with leverage in the range of
50 percent to 55 percent. This will give us the flexibility

to access capital as we grow the business.

Q: Could what happened at Enron happen at DTE Energy?

A: No. In our view, what happened at Enron was at
best a combination of investment failures masked by
aggressive financial reporting. The final chapter will be
written at the conclusion of the multiple investigations
under way. At DTE Energy, we beligve in strategy,
discipline and sticking to what we know best. We

have established growth targets that don't entail
unreasonable risks. We also take integrity very
seriously. Itis one of the company’s five corporate
values that guide all of our business decisions.

DTE Energy 2001 Annual Report 13
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Our utilities provide a solid base upon which to grow.
They are consistent performers over market cycles.
They provide the cash we need to fund a healthy
dividend and to invest in our future. They also provide
the expertise and real-world experience we need to
grow our non-regulated businesses.

We have a long and proud history of serving Michigan
efectric and natural gas customers through our principal
subsidiaries, Detroit Edison and MichCon. Bath utilities
are focused on making continuous improvements to
operations and customer service, while at the same

time reducing costs.

14 www.dteenergy.com

Immediately after completing our merger with MichCon
on May 31, 2001, we began integrating operations. This
involves widespread consolidation of our infrastructure,
from billing systems to customer service operations to
budgeting and benefits. This work will continue
throughout 2002 to achieve the cost synergies we've
targeted for the year.

Despite a year of many challenges, we remained
focused on the customer. In 2001, we spent more than
$500 million to maintain and improve the electrical
system. We plan to do the same in 2002. This helps us
provide energy to our customers whenever they need it.




Much progress was also made in restructuring our
transmission operations into an independent and
competitive business. Late in the year, our International
Transmission Company (ITC) subsidiary began turning
over certain operational functions to the Midwest
Independent System Operator (MISO). MISO is now
responsible for security coordination and monitoring

of regional power flows to ensure electric system reliability.

MichCon continues to broaden its reach and capabili-
ties. It recently completed construction of facilities to
provide natural gas service to a 680-megawatt electric

generating station in mid-Michigan. When the peaking

plant begins operation in the summer of 2002, the

MichCon facility will praovide it with natural gas
transmission, storage and load balancing services.
This project demonstrates how traditional utilities can
work together with independent energy merchants to
help meet the energy needs of Michigan and
surrounding states.

We believe partnerships like these will help Michigan
move to an open energy market in which both residents
and businesses benefit from competitive prices and

economic development.

DTE Energy 2001 Annual Report 15




An Integrated portfolio of energy management businesses will

$M$TAHN our growth

Our energy management businesses are expected to
drive the company’s growth in the near to midterm.
They include a wide range of non-regulated businesses
spanning fossil fuels, natural gas, power generation,
landfill gas recovery, energy trading and on-site energy
services. This broad portfolio of assets and customers
represents combined sales of approximately $3 biltion
and $162 million in net income, up 93 percent over

the previous year.

We use a disciplined approach to investing that
lowers our risk and raises our upside potential.

It involves building a portfolio of complementary

and inter-linked businesses that capitalize on our

unique strengths.

Leveraging our power plant expertise, we are
constructing two natural gas-fired power generation
projects — one in Michigan and one in Illinois. When
completed in 2002, they will generate a combined

480 megawatts of electricity.

We are increasing our emphasis on developing on-site
energy projects for large industrial and commercial
customers in 2002. Two major projects for General
Motors are currently under construction. To support its

16 wwwidteenergy.com




engine plant in North Tonawanda, N.Y., we will own and
operate a chilled water and waste water treatment
facility. We will suppart GM’s Moraine, Ohio, assembly
plant with a compressed air facility.

Qur synfuel facilities are built around our leadership in
the coal market. They provide strong earnings and
cash flows, as well as tax credits that enable very

‘efficient tax management.

Synfuel is made by capturing fine particles of coal, then
processing it into a product that is burned either to
produce energy at power plants or to fuel steel plant

coke batteries. DTE Energy is a growing synfuel
producer with nine facilities. Our synfuel operations
leverage many of the skills and relationships our
portfolio of non-regulated businesses offer — from
developing and permitting, to coal and emissions
trading and transportation, to project management
and financing.

The coordination and synergies across our energy
management businesses provide substantial growth
opportunities. As we move forward, we will continue to
look for new ways to strengthen our existing operations
and add complementary businesses.

poyer projects for the company’s
D Energy Services subsidiary.

~ Above, left: Tom Weeks,
DTE Energy Trading.
Above: Angela Bass, Detroit Edison
Watrren Service Center.




Staying ahead of the curve. That’s our strategy when

it comes to emerging technologies. First, we identify
new technologies with strong earnings potential that
complement our existing businesses. Next, we find
innovative ways to participate. Then we build leadership.

Our growing success with distributed generation (DG)
is a classic example of the way we’re implementing
this strategy to reinvent our future. DG generates safe,
clean, affordable, reliable, high-quality power at or

near the point of use, rather than at large central power
stations. We believe so strongly in the future of DG that
we estahlished a subsidiary to capitalize on it.

18 www.dteenergy.com

Emerging technologies will REHNMENT our future

DTE Energy Technologies has a mission to become a

dominant player in the DG market, providing one-stop
shopping that fills customers’ total energy needs.

Our DG products will use a wide range of technologies
from standby generators to external combustion
engines, to mini-turbines and fuel cells. Gur target
customers are as varied as our product offerings.
They include utilities, retailers, data centers, Internet
service providers, supermarket chains, subdivision
developers, real estate managers and homeowners.




We're using standby products as the initial platform for

building our DG business, having profitably sold more
than 350 units in 2001. At the same time, we are building
the most complete portfolio of continuous DG products
offered in the market by partnering with leading
manufacturers such as Plug Power, iPower and
TurboGenset. DTE Energy Technologies has exclusive
worldwide distribution rights for many of these
products. We currently have eight sales offices across
North America and are expanding our international

distribution network through refationships with strategic

partners in Canada, South America, Europe and Asia.

In addition, DTE Energy Technologies recently
launched a System Operations Center providing remote
management and maintenance of customer generators
anywhere in the world, 24 hours a day, seven days a
week. We also provide application engineering that —
along with operations support — makes designing,
installing and operating DG systems essentially

hassle-free for customers.
We intend to be the leading supplier of integrated

distributed generation solutions for the 21st century.

We are well on our way to achieving this goal.
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The people of DTE Energy @@HWE OUr SUCCESS

You can have good products and good service, but it
takes good people to build great companies. We have
that at DTE Energy.

A diverse and entrepreneurial leadership team guides
our company. An experienced and high-performance
work force fuels our success. We are building an
employee base that views itself as a business partner in
delivering results.

To create this mindset, we are developing leaders who
support and live the culture. We are creating a learning

organization that fosters continuous development. We

are strengthening our work force planning efforts, and

i teeneryicon

improving recruitment and retention of key talent. And
we are redesigning our compensation and performance

systems to more effectively manage for results.

Every one of our employees plays a role in the success
of our company. Their contributions are helping us
achieve new levels of quality, service and performance.
Take a look at one of the 2001 Quality Service Award
recipients in our gas business. The MCN 0il and Gas
team, suggested transforming the oil and gas well
business from an investment company into the second
largest well operator in Michigan. Today, this business
runs more than 1,100 oil and gas wells and is one of
Michigan's lowest cost oil and gas well operators.




This innovation significantly reduced lease operating
expenses and administrative costs, resulting in net
savings of $5.6 million.

Teamwork, at all levels, is a key to our ongoing success.
Growing trust between labor and management plays

a critical role. Thanks to the work of the Union-
Management Partnership, all of our employees

are learning to communicate candidly and problem-
solve together.

As the Belie River power plant prepares for an outage
in early 2002, for example, a team of represented and

non-represented emplayees gets ready to replace the

plant’s main control systems. The work includes
installing mare than 80 miles of new wiring. A dynamic
team of in-house tradespeople is performing the work
and assisting with leadership responsibilities. Their
efforts are reducing project costs and strengthening
work relationships. This project reflects the vision of
the Partnership — to create a culture where all employees
are fully engaged, collaborative decision-making is the
norm, and represented employees are empowered to
work as leaders to manage day-to-day activities.

It is the people of DTE Energy who provide a competitive

edge. We are working hard to create an environment

where they can contribute to their potential.

‘Service A
G

(’ﬂ}ha’nnel power
* X ic Marketing;
Andre Alexander, Fie
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Keeping the environment clean is both a PFBH@E%HW

and a challenge

All of us share the same goal — a cleaner environment
for our children ... and their children ... and their

children. The challenge is creating a realistic plan to
achieve this vision — one that balances environmental

and economic concerns.

Our company has a strong tradition of meeting, and
often exceeding, our environmental commitments.

We're proud of the inroads we've made. Yet pressure
is mounting to do more. We are spending more than
$625 million to comply with requirements established

to address ozone concerns in the Northeast. The focus
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is Detroit Edison’s Monroe power plant, one of the
nation’s largest fossil fuel operations. We are adding
selective catalytic reduction systems to this plant and
combustion controls and low nitrogen oxide (NOx)
burners to additional units. These projects will reduce
Detroit Edison’s NOx emissions by 65 percent to

70 percent during the ozone seasan.

We have been a leader in demonstrating that energy
production and environmental protection need not be
competing priorities. Our Trenton Channel facility, for
example, is the state’s first power plant to earn 1SO 14001
certification for its environmental efforts. We earned




this recognition through the strong relationships farged
under our Union-Management Partnership. In addition,

our St. Clair, Belle River, Monroe and Fermi 2 power

plants were each honored by various organizations for
their environmental stewardship in 2001.

Through 2001, our subsidiary, DTE Biomass Energy, has
recovered more than 90 billion cubic feet of landfill gas
—the equivalent to 20 million tons of carbon dioxide.
The environmental benefits of recovering this gas — that
would otherwise be released into the atmosphere — are
gquivalent to planting 650 million trees.

Left: Bill Terassi, lead for the selective

catalytic converter systems project

for Monroe power plant.

Below, left: Bret St. John at the

Riverview Land Preserve.

Below, right: Melva Macklin plants

Peace Pale garden; Boyscout Troop 294
ature;walk at.the Fermi 2

Six DTE Energy Green Teams of company employees,
retirees and their families work on environmental
projects on company property and in the communities
we serve. They volunteer for a wide range of projects
from picking up litter to installing and monitoring nest
boxes for birds and ducks.

At DTE Energy, we believe that our obligation to serve
goes beyond the delivery of safe, reliable and economical
energy products and services. We also have an
obligation to enhance the guality of life for today’s
society and for generations to come. Environmental
stewardship is at the heart of this commitment.
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Anthony F. Farley, Jr, 52, is chairman, president, chief executive
officer and chief operating officer (CO0) of DTE Energy. He joined
Detroit Edison in 1994 as president and CO0 and that same year
was elected a company director. He was elected to his current
position in 1998. Before joining DTE Energy, Earley served as
president and COO0 of Long Island Lighting Company where he
had worked since 1985.

Gerard 14, Anderson, 43, is president and chief operating officer
of DTE Energy Resources Group. He was named to his present
position in 1998. Previously he was executive vice president of
DTE Energy. Anderson joined the company in 1993 from
McKinsey & Co., where he was a consultant in the energy

and financial arenas.

Robert J. Bucller, 52, is president and chief operating officer of
DTE Energy Distribution Group. He joined the company in 1974 and
was named to his current post in 1998. He has held numerous
positions throughout the organization including power plant
engineering, construction and operation, fuel supply management,
transmission and distribution operation, customer service,
marketing and strategic planning.

Stephen E. Ewing, 57, is president and chief operating officer of
DTE Energy Gas Group. He joined the company in 2001 from

MCN Energy, where he served as its president and chief operating
officer, and president and chief executive officer of its primary
subsidiary, MichCon. Ewing joined MichCon in 1971, holding
executive positions in corporate planning, personnel,
administration and customer service.
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A dynamic B@A@@ EIMpPOwWers our growth

Terence E. Adderley, 68, is chairman,
president and chief executive officer of
Kelly Services Inc. He was appointed its
president and CEQ in 1967 and has served
as the company’'s chairman since 1998. He
was elected to the DTE Energy Board in
1987. (E, F, 0)

! Lilliam Bauder, 62, is vice president of
Corparate Affairs for Masco Corporation
and president of the Masco Corporation
| Foundation since 1995. She joined

_ | DTE Energy's Board in 1986. {A, E, N, P}

| David Bing, 58, is chairman of the board

. of Bing Group Inc., a position he has held
since 1985, and chairman of Superb
Manufacturing since 1987. Mr. Bing joined
the DTE Energy Board in 1985. (A, 0, S)

‘ Anthony F. Earley, Jr., 52, is chairman,
president, chief executive officer and
chief operating officer of DTE Energy since
1998. He joined DTE Energy in 1994 as

“ president and chief operating officer,

the same year he was elected to the

DTE Energy Board. (E)

Y | Allan 0. Gilmour, 67, is retired vice

| chairman of Ford Motar Company. He was
| elected to the DTE Energy Board in 1995.
'{C.E.F0,S)

™ ' and chief executive officer of MCN Energy
‘ Group, served in that position from 1988

| until 2001. He was chairman of MichCon

| from 1984-2001 and served as its CEO from
1984-1992. He joined DTE Energy's Board
in 2001. (F)

‘ - | Alfred B. Glamey [l, 63, former chairman

Committee Membership:

Framnl [¥l. Hennessey, 63, is chairman of
EMCO Limited. Prior to that he served as
vice chairman and chief executive officer
of MascoTech. He served on the Board of

{ MCN Energy since 1988 and joined the
' DTE Energy Board in 2001. (A)

Theodore S. Leipprandt, 68, is owner of
Leipprandt Orchards and retired president

i and chief executive officer of Cooperative

Elevator Co. He was elected to the
DTE Energy Board in 1990. (A, N, P)

Johm E. Lobbia, 60, retired as chairman and
chief executive officer of DTE Energy and
Detroit Edison in 1998. He joined the
company in 1965 and has served on the
DTE Energy Board since 1988. {F, N}

| Eugene A. [Willes, 64, is chairman of

Comerica Incorporated and Comerica
Bank. He retired as president and chief
executive officer at the end of 2001.

Mr. Miiler joined the DTE Energy Board
in 1989. (C, E, F, 0

Charles W. Pryor, Jr, 57, is president and
chief executive officer of Westinghouse
Electric, a position he has held since 1997.
Mr. Pryor joined the DTE Energy Board

in 1999. (N)

Hovvard £ Sims, 68, is chairman and chief
executive officer of Sims Design Group Inc.
He also serves as chairman of The SVA
Group and SV Associates LLC. He served
on the Board of MCN Energy since 1988
and joined the DTE Energy Board

] in 2001.(C)

A - Audit, C - Corporate Governance, E - Executive, F - Finance, N - Nuclear Review, 0 - Organization and Compensation, P - Public Responsibility,

S - Special Committee on Compensation
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DTE Energy Company

MANAGEMIENTS DISCUSSION AND

AMA&Y@HS of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Merger Completed — On May 31, 2001, DTE Energy Company
{DTE Energy or the Company) completed the acquisition

of MCN Energy Group Inc. (MCN Energy). As discussed
further in Note 2, MCN Energy merged with DTE Enterprises
Inc., {Enterprises), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, with Enterprises being the surviving corporation.
The operations of Enterprises are included in the Company's
consolidated results from the date of acquisition.
Enterprises, a Michigan corporation, is an exempt holding
company under the Public Utility Holding Company Act

of 1935. Enterprises is primarily involved in natural gas
production, gathering, processing, transmission, storage,
distribution and energy marketing. Enterprises’ largest
subsidiary, Michigan Consolidated Gas Company (MichCon)},
is a natural gas utility serving 1.2 million customers in a
14,700 square-mile area in Michigan.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

DTE Energy's earnings in 2001 were $332 miltion or $2.16

per diluted share, compared to earnings of $468 million, or
$3.27 per diluted share in 2000. As subsequently discussed,
the comparability of earnings was affected by merger and
restructuring charges and goodwill amortization associated
with the MCN Energy merger that reduced after-tax earnings
by $204 million, or $1.32 per diluted share in 2001. The
Company also recorded merger-related charges in 2000

that reduced earnings by $16 million, or $.12 per diluted
share. See Note 3 - Merger and Restructuring Charges
included herein for additional information. Excluding the
merger and restructuring charges and goodwill amortization,
DTE Energy had 2001 earnings of $536 million, or $3.48 per
diluted share, compared to 2000 earnings of $484 million,

or $3.39 per diluted share. The significant improvement in
garnings primarily refiects contributions from gas operations
acquired in the MCN Energy merger and lower income taxes
resulting from the generation of additional alternate fuels tax
credits by non-regulated businesses. Partially offsetting
these improvements were increased interest on long-term
debt that was incurred to finance the merger and lower
margins from regulated electricity operations.

DTE Energy's earnings in 2000, before merger-related
charges, were up $1 million or $.06 per share from 1939
earnings of $483 million, or $3.33 per share. The slight
increase was due to additional tax credits partially
offset by a 5% residential rate reduction provided for in
the June 2000 Michigan electric industry restructuring
legislation (Note 4).

{in Millions, except per share data) 2001 2000 1999
Net Income (Loss)
Before Reconciling ltems:
Regulated Operations
Electric Utility $ /S 427§ 4%
Gas Utility 23 — -

302 427 434

Non-regulated Operations

Wholesale Marketing & Trading 44 10 8
Energy Services 124 109 84
Other (6) (35) {23)
162 84 69

Corporate & Other {18} (27) {20)

536 484 483

Merger and Restructuring Charges {175) (16) -
MCN Energy Goodwill Amortization {29} -

$ 3|\2$ 468 § 483

Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share
Before Reconciling ltems:
Regulated Operations
Electric Utility $ 240 § 299 § 299
Gas Utility 15 - -
255 2.99 2.99

Non-regulated Operations

Wholesale Marketing & Trading 29 07 06
Energy Services 30 .16 58
Other (.04) (.24) {.16)
1.05 59 A8

Carporate & Other {12) {19) (.14)
3.48 3.39 3.33

Merger and Restructuring Charges {1.13) {12} -
MCN Energy Goodwill Amortization {.19)
$§ 216 %

327 $§ 333

Strategic direction — The Company remains committed

to increasing its earnings growth rate from the current 6%
annual level to 8% by 2005. The growth strategy continues
to be focused on strengthening the Company’s core electric
and gas utilities, building its portfolio of non-regulated busi-
nesses and leveraging investments in energy technology.
There is no assurance that the level of earnings growth
will be achieved for 2002 and later years as the growth
projections assume, among other things, the realization

of anticipated cost savings related to the MCN Energy
acquisition, continued growth in non-regulated earnings
and a midyear 2002 economic recovery. The Company
expects the acquisition to provide pretax cost savings of
over $100 million annually, totaling more than $650 million
in savings over the next five years, primarily in the electric
and gas utilities.

Non-regulated growth is expected to shift over the next

few years from DTE Energy's current reliance on profits from
coal-based fuel businesses that generate alternate fuels tax
credits to growth from energy technologies, on-site energy
projects, merchant generation and energy trading.
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The Company currently operates its businesses through six
segments: Electric Utility; Gas Utility; Wholesale Marketing
& Trading; Energy Services; Other Non-regulated Operations;
and Corporate & Other.

Electric Utility is comprised of the operations of Detroit
Edison and the International Transmission Company. Detrait
Edison generates and distributes electricity throughout
Southeastern Michigan to 2.1 million residential, commercial
and industrial customers. The International Transmission
Company owns transmission assets that are operated by
the Midwest Independent System Operator, a regional
transmission operator. Prior to June 2001, Detroit Edison
owned these transmission assets.

Gas Utility represents the operations of MichCon, which
purchases, stores and distributes natural gas throughout
Michigan to 1.2 million residential, commercial and
industrial customers.

Wholesale Marketing & Trading consists primarily of the
electric, gas and coal trading and marketing operations of
DTE Energy Trading Company and the natural gas trading
and marketing operations of Enterprises. Wholesale
Marketing & Trading enters into forwards, futures, swaps
and option contracts as part of its trading strategy.
Wholesale Marketing & Trading also purchases and sells
electricity and gas to marketers and brokerage companies.

Energy Services is comprised of various businesses that
develop and manage energy-related assets and services.
Such projects include coke production, synfuels production,
independent power plants, on-site powerhouses and
cogeneration facilities, coal services and landfill gas
recovery. The economic viability of synfuels projects is

tied to their generation of alternate fuels tax credits.

Other Non-regulated Operations represents the operations
of energy businesses primarily involved in emerging tech-
nologies, and various other energy operations acquired with
the MCN Energy merger, including the exploration and
production of gas, the gathering, processing and storing

of gas, and the production of methanol. Certain pipeline

and storage assets are used to support the Wholesale
Marketing & Trading segment.

Corporate & Other includes administrative and general
expenses, and interest cost of DTE Energy corporate
that have not been allocated to the regulated and
non-regulated businesses.

Electric Utility

Electric Utility net income before merger and restructuring
charges decreased $58 million in 2001 and decreased $7
million in 2000, compared to the prior year. As subsequently
discussed, the decline in 2001 is primarily attributable to
lower commercial and industrial sales reflecting the impact
of the current economic recession and customers
participating in the Electric Choice Program, as well as
higher operation and maintenance costs and the impact

of securitization (Note 4).
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{in Millions) 2001 2000
Electric Utility
Increase (Decrease) in Income
Compared to Prior Year
Operating revenues
Rate reduction $ (116) $  (43)
PSCR rate change - 82
System sales volume and mix {69) 24
Wholesale sales €5 -
Other - net 49 19
(78) 82
Fuel and purchased power 20 (165}
Operation and maintenance {88) 76
Depreciation and amortization 75 (16)
Taxes, other than income 15 (14)
Interest expense and other {24) -
Income taxes 23 30
Cumulative effect of accounting
change, net of tax {3) -
Total change before merger and
restructuring charges $ BBS @

Operating revenues decreased $78 million in 2001 due to

a decline in sales rates and electric sales for commercial
and industrial customers. Sales rates for commercial and
industrial customers were lowered by a 5% legislatively
mandated rate reduction that began in April 2001.
Commercial sales decreased primarily due to increased
participation of customers in the Electric Choice Program.
Under this program, participating customers choose to
purchase their electricity from suppliers other than Detroit
Edison. However, the Electric Utility continues to provide
transmission and distribution services for these customers
retaining margins from such services. Industrial sales
reflect reduced auto and steel production, the impact of
Electric Choice participation and the end of a special energy
sales agreement with a large steel manufacturer in March
of 2001. Partially offsetting these declines were increased
revenues fram residential and wholesale customers as well
as higher revenues from providing other energy related
services. Residential customer revenues reflect higher
demand resulting from weather, partially offset by the
impact of a 5% rate reduction that began in June 2000.
Revenues from whalesale customers increased due to
gains from settling forward sales contracts. The sales
contracts were entered into to effectively close forward
purchase contracts that hedged Detroit Edison’s power
supply costs. Accordingly, the gains from forward sales
contracts were substantially offset by losses from forward
purchase contracts which are recorded as part of fuel and
purchased power costs.

Operating revenues in 2000 increased $82 million over 1999
due to higher sales to commercial and industrial customers,
partially offset by lower residential customer sales.
Additionally, under the Power Supply Cost Recovery {PSCR)
mechanism which was in effect through June 2000, Detroit
Edison increased rates in January 2000 to recover higher
pawer costs. The increased commercial and industrial

sales reflected favorable economic conditions in Michigan.
Industrial sales also increased due to the special sales
agreement with a large steel manufacturer. The decline




in residential revenues reflects reduced demand resulting
from a cooler summer in 2000 and the impact of the 5%
rate reduction. Wholesale sales decreased due to lower
demand for energy and less availability of energy for sale.
Also impacting revenues in 2000 were higher revenues
from other energy-related services.

Revenue and sales data follow:

{in Millions) 2001 2000 1999
Residential $ 1298 $ 1265 $ 1,300
Commercial 1,533 1,670 1,629
Industrial 773 848 809
Wholesale 185 130 130
Other 251 216 179

$ 4051 $ 4129 $ 4,047

{in Thousands of MWh}

Residential 14,503 13,903 14,064
Commercial 18,777 19,762 19,546
Industrial 14,430 16,080 15,647
Wholesale 868 2,592 3,672
Other 2,538 2,653 2,595

50,1916 55000 55524

Fuel and purchased power expense decreased $30 million in
2001 and increased $165 million in 2000. The decline in 2001
is due to lower system output resulting from reduced electric
sales, as well as the result of using a more favorable power
supply mix reflecting increased usage of lower-cost power
from the Company's generating plants and reduced usage of
higher-cost purchased power. Also favorably impacting the
2001 comparison was an adjustment of a reserve associated
with a contract to purchase steam at above market prices
(Note 14). Additionally, losses on the settlement of forward
and option contracts to hedge purchase power prices
increased purchased power expense in 2001, The 2000 fuel
and purchased power expense increase resulted primarily
from greater reliance on higher-cost purchased power and
higher purchase power prices.

System output and average fuel and purchased power costs
for Detroit Edison were as follows:

{in Thousands of MWh) 20001 2000 1999

Power generated and purchased
Power plant generation

Fossil 39711 42,100 43,016
Nuclear 8555 8,239 9,484
Purchased power 7482 8,877 6,959
System output 55,748 59,216 59,459

Average unit cost ($/MWh)

Generation (1) $ 1231 $§ 1278 $ 1251

Purchased power {2) $ 7824 $ 6257 $ 54.80

(1) Represents fuel costs associated with pawer plants. (2) The average
purchased power amounts include gains and losses from hedging activities.
Operating and maintenance expenses increased $96 million
in 2001 and decreased $76 million in 2000. The increase in
2001 was primarily due to expenses related to maintenance
and reliability work for power generation facilities, which
reduces random outages at power plants and Detroit Edison’s
reliance on purchased power. Additionally, the higher 2001

expenses include the cost of funding the low income and
energy efficiency fund required by Michigan legislation
which is recovered in current sales rates and costs allocated
from DTE Energy corporate for various corporate support
services. The increase was partially offset by synergy cost
savings related to the MCN Energy merger.

The decrease in 2000 operation and maintenance expenses
resulted primarily from lower costs associated with restoring
power to customers who lost service during severe storms,
as well as the elimination of computer system related costs
associated with year 2000 (Y2K) initiatives.

Depreciation and amortization expense decreased

$75 million in 2001 and increased $16 million in 2000. The 2001
dectine reflects the extension of the amortization period from
seven years to 15 years for certain regulatory assets that
were securitized in March 2001 (Note 4), partially offset by
depreciation on higher levels of plant in service. The increase
in 2000 was due to increased levels of plant in service and
the accelerated amortization of unamortized nuclear costs.

Taxes other than income decreased $15 million in 2001
and increased $14 million in 2000. The improvement in 2001
is attributed to an adjustment in property tax expense
reflecting a change in method of calculating the taxable
value of personal property subject to taxation by local
taxing jurisdictions. New valuation tables approved by
the Michigan State Tax Commission more accurately
recognize the impact of regulation on the value of a
utility’s personal property based on the property’s age.
Partially offsetting the 2001 decline and resulting in

the 2000 increase were property taxes associated

with higher property balances. Lower Michigan

Single Business Taxes also affected hoth years.

Interest expense and other increased $24 million in 2001
due primarily to debt issued for securitization, partially offset
by redemptions of higher cost debt with the proceeds of the
securitization bonds {Note 10). Detroit Edison completed the
redemption of debt with securitization proceeds in 2001.

Outlook — The Electric Utility segment expects electric
system sales to remain relatively flat in 2002 due to the
current economic recession and to grow modestly beginning
in 2003. The state of Michigan continues its initiatives to
restructure the electric industry by increasing competition
among alternative suppliers of electric generation services.
Effective January 1, 2002, the Electric Choice Program

was expanded whereby all electric customers can choose
to purchase their electricity from suppliers other than

their tocal utility {Note 4). Prior to January 2002, electric
restructuring tegislation limited customer participation in
the Electric Choice Program.

Detroit Edison does not earn generation margins on electricity
sales to customers who choose to participate in the Electric
Choice Program. However, the Electric Utility segment will
continue to earn margins from providing transmission and
distribution delivery services to participating customers.
Detroit Edison expects to lose 5% to 8% of its sales as a
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result of customers choosing to participate in Electric
Choice during 2002. As subsequently discussed, Michigan
Public Service Commission (MPSC) orders issued in
December 2001 could result in higher numbers of retail
customers being lost to Electric Choice. Detroit Edison
expects to sell more electricity in the wholesale market
as a result of the available capacity left by customers
participating in Electric Choice. The additional wholesale
revenues are expected to partially offset any decline in
revenues from retail customers.

The MPSC issued orders in December 2001 which are
designed to increase customer participation in the Electric
Choice Program and allow Detroit Edison to recover costs
related to its generation operations that may not otherwise
be recoverable (stranded costs) due to Electric Choice
related lost sales and margins. The MPSC essentially
determined that Electric Choice customers should not pay
a securitization and tax surcharge that other customers
are required to pay and will continue to be credited with
an additional 5% rate reduction which is funded by savings
from securitization. These provisions will likely result in
Detroit Edison’s power costs being higher than that of
alternative suppliers, encouraging additional customer
participation in the Electric Choice Program.

As a resuit of the MPSC orders, Detroit Edison would
recover the net stranded costs associated with its electric
generation operations. Specifically there would be an
annual filing with the MPSC comparing actual revenues
from generation services to the revenue requirements,
including an allowance for the cost of capital, to recover
the costs of generation operations. The MPSC in its
orders determined that Detroit Edison had no stranded
costs using 2000 data, established a zero 2002 transition
charge and deferred the issues of refining the net stranded
costs methodology and the recalculating of net stranded
costs to 2002. Detroit Edison has substantive issues with
the MPSC's methodology of calculating stranded costs
and has asked for rehearing, clarification and substantial
changes on certain aspects of the order. For further
information concerning the Electric Choice Program and
industry restructuring, see Note 4 — Regulatory Matters —
Electric Industry Restructuring — Michigan Legislation.

Electric Utility future operating results will also vary with a
variety of other external factors such as weather, the cost
of fuel and purchased power, and changes in economic
conditions. The current economic recession has lowered
margins from commercial and industrial customers in the
latter half of 2001 and is expected to unfavorably impact
margins through the first half of 2002.

Management expects to meet the challenges of the reces-
sion, Electric Choice and the imposed retail rate freezes by,
among other actions, reducing costs at Detroit Edison as a
result of the acquisition of MCN Energy and its wholly
owned gas utility, MichCon. Approximately 35% of Detroit
Edison’s 2.1 million customers are also customers of
MichCon. Detroit Edison and MichCon have begun and
expect to continue realizing synergies from integrated
common, duplicative functions.
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Gas Utility

The Gas Utility, before merger and restructuring charges,
had net income of $23 million for the seven months in 2001.
As previously discussed, DTE Energy acquired MichCon

on May 31, 2001, as part of the MCN Energy merger.
Accordingly, the operating results of MichCon are included
in the Company’s consolidated results from the acquisition
date. The pro forma impact of MCN Energy on the Company
is included in Note 2 - MCN Energy Acquisition.

2001
{Dollars in Millions) $ Bef
Gas Statistics
Operating Revenues
Gas sales 491 95
End user transportation 50 81
Intermediate transportation 28 304
Other 35 -
03 480
Cost of Gas Sold 255 n/a
Gross Margin — Actual 207 n/a
Impact of weather — warmer than normal 20 14
Gross Margin — Weather Normalized 327 434

Gas sales and end user transportation services generated
80% of total gross margins for the Gas Utility segment.
Margins from providing gas sales and end user transporta-
tion services are seasonal and weather dependent with
the majority of profits generated in the colder first and
fourth quarters. Mild weather, which was 20% warmer
than normal in the fourth quarter of 2001, reduced gross
margins by $20 million ($13 million after taxes) and reduced
gas sales by 14 billion cubic feet (Bcf).

Gas sales represent the sale and delivery of natural gas
primarily to residential and smali-volume commercial and
industrial customers. Through December 2001, MichCon
operated under a Gas Sales Program in which its sales rates
included a gas commodity component that was fixed at $2.95
per thousand cubic feet (Mcf). Under this program, MichCon
had commodity price risk associated with its ability to secure
gas supplies at prices less than $2.95 per Mcf. As discussed
in the “Outlook” section that follows, MichCon returned to a
Gas Cost Recovery (GCR) mechanism in January 2002 and
no longer has commodity price risk. End user transportation
represents a gas delivery service for customers, including
customer choice customers, who purchase natural gas
directly from producers or brokerage companies and con-
tract with MichCon to deliver that gas to their premises.

Intermediate transportation services represents a gas deliv-
ery service for producers, brokers and other gas companies
that own the natural gas but are not the ultimate consumers.
Although intermediate transportation volumes are a signifi-
cant part of total deliveries, profit margins on this service are
considerably less than margins on gas sales and end user
transportation services. Intermediate transportation deliveries
include volumes associated with fixed-fee customers.
Transportation volumes for fixed-fee customers may fluctuate,
however revenues from such customers are not affected.



Other operating revenues include late payment fees, appli-
ance maintenance services and other gas-related services.

Cost of gas is affected by variations in gas sales valumes,
cost of purchased gas and related transportation costs, and
the effects of any permanent liquidation of inventory gas
which is accounted for under the “last-in first-out” (LIFQ)
method. The 2001 results benefited from a 2.1 Bef liquidation
in inventory gas that was priced at $0.39 per Mcf. The Gas
Utility’s 2001 average gas purchase rate was $2.83 per Mcf
higher than the average LIFO liguidation rate.

Outlook — The Gas Utility segment’s objective is to expand
its role as the preferred provider of natural gas and high-
value energy services within Michigan. Management
expects to improve the Gas Utility’s cost competitiveness
as a result of the merger. Approximately 60% of MichCon's
1.2 million customers are also customers of Detroit Edison.
Contributions from the Gas Utility segment are expected to
increase significantly in 2002 when the financial results
reflect a full 12 months of DTE Energy owning MichCon.

The MPSC is continuing its initiatives designed to give all of
Michigan’'s natural gas customers added choices and the
opportunity to benefit from lower gas costs resulting from
competition. In December 2001, the MPSC issued an order
that continues the Gas Choice Program on a permanent

and expanding basis beginning with the conclusion of the
three-year temporary program on March 31, 2002. Under

the expanded program, beginning April 1, 2002, up to approx-
imately 40% of customers could elect to purchase gas from
suppliers other than MichCon. Beginning in April 2003, up

to approximately 60% of customers could participate and
beginning April 2004, all 1.2 million of MichCon's gas cus-
tomers could choose to participate. MichCon will continue to
transport and deliver the gas to the participating customers’
premises at prices that generate favorable margins. As of
December 2001, approximately 30,000 customers were
participating in the temporary Gas Choice Program.

Under the MPSC order, MichCon returned to a GCR
mechanism upon termination of its three-year experimental
Gas Sales Program in December 2001. MichCon's gas
sales rates will now include a gas commodity component
designed to recover its actual gas costs. For further
information concerning the Gas Choice and Gas Sales
Programs, see Note 4 — Regulatory Matters ~ Gas

Industry Restructuring.

Gas Utility future operating results will vary as a result of
weather and changes in economic conditions. The current
economic recession and the significantly warmer 2001-2002
winter lowered margins from residential, commercial and
industrial customers in the latter half of 2001.

Whelesale Marketing & Trading

Wholesale Marketing & Trading’s income totaled $44 million
in 2001, an increase of $34 million from 2000. Income in 2000
increased a slight $2 million from 1999. The electric marketing
and trading portion of the segment contributed $8 million in

2001, representing realized margins primarily associated with
short-term, back-to-back, physical power purchases and
sales.The gas partion of the segment contributed the remain-
ing $36 million, representing mark-to-market gains on long-
term gas sales contracts with several cageneration facilities.

Commadity price risk of the Wholesale Marketing & Trading
segment are managed by utilizing derivative financial
contracts to offset the risk inherent in its portfolio of electric
and gas supply and sales agreements. The segment's
ohjective is to enter into new transactions that are
hedgeable and profitable from an economic standpoint.
Wholesale Marketing & Trading accounts for this risk
minimization strategy by marking to market its commodity
forwards, financial derivatives, and corresponding physical
positions so there are substantial offsetting amounts. This
fair value accounting better aligns financial reporting for the
segment with the way management manages the business
and measures its performance.

In 2001, Wholesale Marketing & Trading experienced earn-
ings volatility as a result of its production-related gas supply
as well as from open positions related to its long-term gas
transportation and storage assets. The segment receives
gas produced from DTE Energy's exploration & production
(E&P} operations which is used to meet its commitments
under long-term contracts with cogeneration customers.
The E&P gas does not qualify for mark-to-market
accounting. Wholesale Marketing & Trading recorded

a gain in 2001 totaling approximately $50 million, net

of taxes, primarily attributable to marking to market

sales contracts with power generation customers
without recording an offsetting loss from marking to
market the production-related gas supply. In December
2001, Wholesale Marketing & Trading entered into hedge
transactions that substantially mitigate the earnings
volatility related to the gas contracts with power
generation customers.

Wholesale Marketing & Trading operates a storage trading
strateqy primarily utilizing the facilities owned and operated
by DTE Energy. Employing a combination of physical and
financial contracts, in conjunction with the injection and
withdrawal capabilities of the storage fields, the segment is
able to capture seasonal price spreads. As forward prices
change, the timing of the physical flow of gas is optimized
to obtain the highest margin. Trades under this strategy are
marked to market against the forward curve. Physical gas in
storage, however, is marked to the current spot price under
fair value accounting rules. This difference in accounting for
forward trades and gas in storage occasionally results in
earnings volatility when price changes in the spot month do
not correspond with those in future delivery months. Gas
in storage in December 2001 was priced at a spot market
rate of $2.77 per Mcf, compared to a May 31, 2001, merger
date rate of $5.28 per Mcf. Significantly smaller changes
in forward prices occurred during these same periods.
As a result, the mark-to-market losses on gas inventory
were only partially offset by mark-to-market gains on the
storage-related derivatives.
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Outlook — Wholesale Marketing & Trading will focus on
expanding its coverage within existing markets in the
northeast and midwest United States and eastern Canada.
Gas storage and transportation capacity enhances its ability
to pravide reliable and custom-tailored, bundied services to
large-volume end users and utilities. This capacity, coupled
with the synergies from DTE Energy’s other businesses,
positions the segment to capitalize on opportunities for
expansion of its market base.

Wholesale Marketing & Trading manages commodity price
risk by utilizing derivative financial contracts to more fully
balance its portfolio of gas and electric supply and sales
agreements. Wholesale Marketing & Trading attempts

1o maintain a balanced or flat book from an economic
standpoint. However, Wholesale Marketing & Trading will
experience earnings volatility as a result of open positions
related to long-term gas transportation contracts with third
parties and due to fluctuations in inventory valuations. The
Company is currently evaluating various hedge strategies
related to these assets.

Energy Services

Net income increased $15 million in 2001 and $25 million

in 2000. The improvement in both periods is attributed to
anincreased generation of alternate fuels tax credits which
totaled $165 million in 2001, compared to $130 million in 2000
and $116 million in 1999. The higher tax credits reflect an
increased level of operations, and the addition of three
new synfuels projects in 2001. Additionally, results reflect
increased contributions from the coal services business
and the biomass landfill gas recovery operation. Gains on
the sale of minority interests in two coke battery projects

in 2001 were offset by reduced levels of income generated
by the projects. The improved earnings were partially offset
by increased new project development costs.

Outlook — The Energy Services segment's objective is to con-
tinue developing and relocating synfuel projects and to focus
on on-site energy projects and independent power projects.
Management expects three new synfuel sites, two electric
generation projects and two industrial on-site energy projects
to become operational in 2002. Contributions from new synfuel
projects will be partially offset by reduced earnings from coke
battery projects due to the expiration of related alternate
fuels tax credits at the end of 2002. Additionally, tax credits
from synfuel projects will expire at the end of 2007 with the
possibility of being extended. The focus of this business, which
had primarily been to develop, canstruct, awn and operate
projects, will shift for the near term to acquiring operating
assets or existing projects under construction.

Other Non-regulated Cperations

Net losses from Other Non-regulated Operations declined
$29 million in 2001 and increased $12 million in 2000. Results
reflect losses in 2000 from an electric marketing company
that was participating in a Pennsylvania customer choice
program. The Company has discontinued the aperations of
the electric marketing company.
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Outlook — The Company will continue to invest in emerging
technologies, and various other energy operations. Growth
in future years is expected from the successful development
and marketing of various distributed generation products,
including standby generators, external combustion engines,
mini-turbines and fue! cells. Additionally, the Company will
consider further developing its gas production properties
in northern Michigan and its pipelines, processing and
storage assets. Non-strategic operations acquired with
the MCN Energy merger will be sold to partially fund
non-regulated growth.

Corporate & Qther

Results from Corporate & Other improved by $9 million in
2001 and declined by $7 million in 2000. The impravement in
2001 reflects the allocation of corporate support expenses
to regulated and non-regulated operations as well as
reduced interest expense resulting from the repayment

of debt with proceeds received from Detroit Edison. Upon
issuing $1.75 billion of securitization bonds, Detroit Edison
distributed approximately 50% of such proceeds to DTE
Energy corporate. DTE Energy used such proceeds to retire
debt and repurchase common shares. The Corporate &
Other decrease in 2000 reftects higher interest expense
and corporate support expenses.

CAPITAL RESCURCES AND LIQUIDITY

{in Millions) 2001 2000 1999

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash Flow From {Used For)

Operating activities $ 811 ¢ 1,005 $ 1,084

Investing activities {2,280) {674} (712)

Financing activities 1,873 {310} {469)
Net Increase {Decrease) in Cash

and Cash Equivalents $ 2048 3% (97

Operating Activities

DTE Energy's consolidated net cash from operating activities
decreased $204 million in 2001 and $69 million in 2000. The
decline in 2001 resulted primarily from higher warking capital
requirements partially offset by higher netincome, after
adjusting for noncash items (depreciation, amortization,
deferred taxes and certain restructuring charges). The higher
working capital primarily reflects the seasonal requirements

in the second half of 2001 of the gas business where cash is
used to finance increases in gas inventories and customer
accounts receivable. The Company uses its cash derived
from operating activities primarily to maintain and expand

its core electric and gas utility businesses and to build
non-regulated businesses. In addition, the Company uses
cash from gperations to retire long-term debt and to pay
dividends. The decline in 2000 resulted from lower net
income, after adjusting for noncash items, partially offset

by lower warking capita! requirements.

Investing Activities

DTE Energy’s consolidated net cash used far investing activi-
ties increased $1.6 billion in 2001 and decreased $38 million in
2000. The increase in 2001 was due primarily to the acquisition




of MCN Energy in May 2001 and the capital expenditures in
regulated and non-regulated businesses, partiaily offset by
proceeds from the sale of non-strategic assets. The higher
regulated capital expenditures at Detroit Edison are
attributable to new air quality regulations, which require the
reduction in nitrogen oxide levels as discussed in the
“Environmental Matters” section that follows. The decline in
2000 is attributable to a reduction in restricted cash.

Financing Activities

DTE Energy’s consolidated net cash related to financing
activities increased $2 hillion in 2001 and decreased

$159 million in 2000. The increase in 2001 was due primarily
to the issuance of $1.75 billion of securitization bonds and
the issuance of $1.35 billion of long-term debt to finance
the cash consideration portion of the acquisition of MCN
Energy. Proceeds from the securitization bonds were used
to repay debt and repurchase approximately $424 million
of DTE Energy common stock. In addition, Detroit Edison
issued $840 million of long-term debt. These proceeds,
coupled with proceeds from securitization, were used for
general corporate purposes including the redemption

of $1.27 billion of higher cost debt, of which $1.11 hillion
represented unscheduled redemptions. MichCon issued
$200 mitlion of long-term debt and used the proceeds for
general corporate purposes, including the redemption of
$40 million of unscheduled debt. Net cash used for financing
activities was lower in 2000 due to decreased redemptions
of lang-term debt, partially offset by repurchases of
common stock.

During 2001, the Company, Detroit Edison and MichCon
entered into a bank facility arrangement used to support
commercial paper in the amounts of $800 million, $300 million
and $300 million, respectively. Commercial paper is usually
issued in lieu of an equivalent amount of borrowings under
these lines of credit. Amounts outstanding under this facility
at December 31, 2001, were $423 million at the Company

and $254 million at MichCon.

Outiook — DTE Energy's strategic direction will result in
capital investments and expenditures in 2002 totaling
approximately $950 million, of which approximately $200
million will be in non-regulated businesses and the remaining
$750 million in regulated electric and gas operations.
Approximately $200 million of the regulated capital
expenditures will be incurred by Detroit Edison to comply
with new ozone and air guality regulations.

The proposed level of investments and expenditures

in future years is expected to be financed primarily with
internally generated funds, proceeds from the sale of
non-strategic assets and debt. DTE Energy's capitalization
objective is to maintain its strong credit ratings through

a strong balance sheet. Its capitalization objective is a
50%-55% leverage target. Management believes that the
Company and its subsidiaries will have sufficient capital
resources to meet anticipated capital requirements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

DTE Energy has operations within six business segments.
There are three key types of transactions presented in the
consolidated financial statements that require considerable
judgment and estimation. Such transactions relate to
regulatory assets and liabilities, risk management and
trading activities and alternate fuels tax credits.

Regulation

A significant portion of the Company’s business is subject

to regulation. Detroit Edison’s electric distribution operations,
MichCon'’s gas distribution and transportation operations and
the transmission operations of International Transmission
Company (ITC) currently meet the criteria of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards {SFAS) No. 71, “Accounting
for the Effects of Certain Types of Reguiation,” which resuits
in differences in the application aof generally accepted
accounting principles between regulated and non-regulated
businesses. SFAS No. 71 requires the recording of regulatory
assets and liabilities for certain transactions that would have
been treated as revenue and expense in non-regulated
businesses. Future regulatory changes or changes in the
campetitive environment could result in the Company
discontinuing the application of SFAS No. 71 for some
or all of its businesses and require the write-off of the
portion of any regulatory asset or liability that was

no longer probable of recavery or refund. If Detroit
Edison (excluding its subsidiary, The Detroit Edison
Securitization Funding LLC) were to have discontin-

ued the application of SFAS No. 71 for all of its
operations as of December 31, 2001, it would have

had an extraordinary noncash charge to income of
approximately $58 million. If MichCon were to have
discontinued the application of SFAS Na. 71, it would
have had an extraordinary noncash increase to income
of approximately $60 million. There would be no significant
impact to earnings if ITC were to discontinue its application
of SFAS No. 71. Management believes that currently available
facts support the continued application of SFAS No. 71 and
that all regulatory assets and liabilities are recoverable or
refundable through the current rate environment.

Risk Management and Trading Activities

All derivatives are recorded at fair value and shown as
“Assets or liahilities from risk management and trading
activities” in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Risk management activities are accounted for in accordance
with SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments
and Hedging Activities.” Trading activities are accounted

for in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force |ssue

No. 98-10, “Accounting for Energy Trading and Risk
Management Activities.” Except for the activities of the
Wholesale Marketing & Trading segment, the Company does
not hold or issue derivative instruments for trading purposes.

The offsetting entry to “Assets or liabilities from risk man-
agement and trading activities” is to other comprehensive
income or earnings depending on the use of the derivative
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and whether it is designated and qualifies for hedge
accounting. The fair values of derivative contracts are
adjusted each accounting period for changes in the market
and are derived from: i) published exchange traded market
data; i} prices from external sources; and iii) prices based
on valuation models. Market quotes are more readily
available for short duration contracts. The Company has
derivative contracts extending to 2016.

Alternate Fuels Tax Credits

DTE Energy generated $165 million in alternate fuels tax
credits in 2001, up from $130 million in 2000 and $116 million
in 1999, Qutside firms assist the Company in calculating the
tax credits and evaluating their realizability.

ENVIRONIMENTAL MATTERS

Protecting the environment fram damage, as well as
correcting past environmental damage, continues to be

a focus of state and federal regulators. Legislation

and/or rulemaking could further impact the electric utility
industry including Detroit Edison. The U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA} and the Michigan Department of
Enviranmental Quality have aggressive praograms regarding
the clean-up of contaminated property. The EPA initiated
enfarcement actions against several major electric utilities
citing violations of new source provisions of the Clean Air
Act. Detroit Edison received and responded to information
requests from the EPA on this subject. The EPA has not
initiated praceedings against Detroit Edison. The National
Energy Policy Development Group has undertaken a review
of the EPA's interpretation of regulations applying to new
source review requirements. The Company expects this
review to focus on the ability of fossil-fueled plant owners
to perform plant maintenance without additional significant
environmentally related modifications. While the Company
anticipates a continued ability to economically maintain

its plants, the outcome of this governmental review

cannot be predicted.

EPA ozone transport regulations and final new air guality
standards relating to ozone and particulate air pollution
will impact the Company. Detroit Edison has spent
approximately $221 million through December 2001 and
estimates that it will incur approximately $400 million to
$500 million of future capital expenditures over the next
three years to comply.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain information presented herein includes forward-look-
ing statements within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-looking statements
involve certain risks and uncertainties that may cause actual
future results to differ materially from those contemplated,
projected, estimated or budgeted in such forward-looking
statements. Factors that may impact forward-looking state-
ments include, but are not limited to, interest rates, access to
the capital markets, the level of borrowings, weather, actual
sales, changes in the cost of fuel and purchased power due
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to the suspension of the Power Supply Cast Recavery
mechanism, changes in the cost of natural gas, the effects
of competition and the implementation of Electric and Gas
Choice Pragrams, the implementation of electric and gas
utility restructuring in Michigan, environmental and nuclear
requirements, the impact of FERC proceedings and regula-
tions, the timing of the accretive effects of DTE Energy's
merger with MCN Energy, and the contributions to earnings
by non-regulated businesses.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOQUNCEMENTS

Effective January 1, 2001, the Company adopted SFAS No.
133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities.” SFAS No. 133 establishes accounting and
reporting standards for derivative instruments, including
certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts,
and for hedging activities.

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
{(FASB) issued SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations,” and
No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” The most
significant change made by SFAS No. 141 requires that the
purchase method of accounting be used for all business
combinations. The most significant changes made by SFAS
No. 142 are that the amortization of goodwill will cease, and
goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets will be tested
for impairment at least annually. In June 2001, the FASB
issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement
Obligations.” This statement requires that the fair value of
an asset retirement obligation be recognized in the period
in which itis incurred. In August 2001, the FASB issued
SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal
of Long-Lived Assets.” This statement establishes a single
accounting model for long-lived assets to be disposed of by
sale, whether previously held and used or newly acquired.

See Note 1~ Significant Accounting Policies for a further
discussion of these pronouncements.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The following table reflects the payments due by periad
for the Company’s contractual obligations existing at
December 31, 2001:

{in Millions) Payments Due by Peried
Less Than 1-3 45 After
Contractual Obligations  Total 1Year Vears VYears 3 Years
Long-Term Debt:
Mortgage bonds,
notes and other $6321 § 429 § 668 $ 930 3 4294
Securitization bonds 1,746 73 171 201 1,295
Capital Lease Obligations 147 21 27 25 74
Operating Leases 102 19 34 22 27
Unconditional Purchase
Obligations 2,405 552 753 315 785

Other Lang-Term Obligations 671 15 293 28 334
Total Obligations $11392 § 1,109 § 1952 § 1522 $ 6,809

The Company expects that its 2002 capital expenditures will
approximate $950 million. Certain commitments have been
made in connection with such capital expenditures and are
excluded from the above table.




FAIR VALUE OF CONTRACTS

The following table reflects the maturity and sources of the
net fair value gain (loss) of contracts at December 31, 2001:
Matwrity Matwity Mamrity Materity Total

lessThan  1-3 45 [Exceeding [air
fin Millions) 1Vear Vears VYears GVears Value
Trading Activities
Prices From:
Quotes $ 32 $ 5 $ 4 §$§ - &4
External sources 14 - - - 14
Other sources - 3 1 - 4
$ 46 $§ 8 § 5 § - 59
Risk Managememnt
Activities (248)
Total Assets & Liabilities from Risk
Management and Trading Activities $(189)

The “Prices from quotes” category represents the
Company’s positions for which forward price curves were
developed using published NYMEX exchange prices and
over the counter (0TC) gas and power quotes. The NYMEX
currently publishes gas futures prices for the next six years.

The “Prices from external sources” category represents
the Company’s forward positions in power at points for
which OTC broker quates are not always directly available.
The Company values these positions against internally
developed forward market price curves that are constantly
validated and recalibrated against OTC broker quotes for
closely correlated points. This category also inciudes
“strip” transactions whose prices are obtained from
external sources and then modeled to daily or monthly
prices as appropriate.

The "Prices from other sources” category contains the
value of transactions for which an internally developed price
curve was constructed as a result of the long dated nature
of the transaction or the illiquidity of the market point.

A reconciliation of the Company's estimated net fair value
of trading contracts follows:

{in Millions)

Fair value at January 1, 2001 $ 17
Plus: contracts acquired upon acquisition of MCN Energy 12
Less: contracts realized during 2001 {33)
Other changes in fair value 63
Fair value at December 31, 2001 $ 59

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE
DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Commedity Price Risk
Risk Wanagement Activities

Detroit Edison is subject ta commaodity price risk in
conjunction with the anticipated purchase of electricity

to meet reliability obligations during times of peak customer
demand. Detroit Edison’s exposure to commodity price

risk arises from market fluctuations in commodity prices.

To limit the sensitivity to commodity price fluctuations,
Detroit Edison has entered into a series of forward electricity
contracts and option contracts. See Note 13 — Financial

and Other Derivative Instruments herein for a further
discussion of these derivative instruments.

The Company is exposed to the risk of market price
fluctuations on gas sale and purchase contracts, gas
production and gas inventories. To manage this risk,
the Company uses natural gas futures, options,
forwards and swap agreements.

The Company performed a sensitivity analysis to calculate
the impact of changes in fair values utilizing applicable
forward commodity rates in effect at December 31, 2001.
The Company estimates that if commodity prices were
10% higher or lower, the net fair value of commodity
contracts would increase $24 million and decrease

$35 million, respectively.

Trading Activities

Wholesale Marketing & Trading markets and trades
electricity, gas and related fuels, in addition to providing
price risk management services using energy commodity
derivatives. Wholesale Marketing & Trading performed a
sensitivity analysis to calculate the impact of changes
in fair values utilizing applicable forward commodity
rates in effect at December 31, 2001. The Company
estimates that if commodity prices were 10% higher

or lower, the fair value of commodity contracts

would decrease $8.4 million and increase

$8.0 million, respectively.

Credit Risl

Electricity and gas is purchased from and sold to
numerous companies operating in the steel, automotive,
energy and retail industries. A number of customers have
filed for bankruptey in 2001, including certain Enron
Corporation affiliates. Certain DTE Energy subsidiaries
had open transactions under a variety of agreements
with bankrupt Enron affiliates and such subsidiaries had
an aggregate net liability of $24 million to Enron. There are
various netting agreements with Enron affiliates. Internal
and external counsel are working to determine the
Company's rights within these agreements. The Company
has not reserved for any of its exposure, in addition to the
net liabilities already recorded, as management cannot
estimate a probable loss exposure and currently does not
believe the resolution of this matter will have a material
impact to the Company.

Interest Rate Risk

The Company estimates that if interest rates were

10% higher or lower, the fair value of long-term debt at
December 31, 2001 would decrease $234 million and
increase $217 million, respectively.
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DTE Energy Company

Report of | MANA@ M R\DT @
EE@T}@ w@ BMW \/ for Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements of DTE Energy
Company and subsidiary companies have been prepared
by management in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, based
on available facts and management's best estimates and
judgment of known conditions. It is the responsibility of
management to assure the integrity and objectivity of such
financial statements and to assure that these statements
fairly repart the Company’s financial position and the results
of its operations.

To meet this responsibility, management maintains a high
standard of record keeping and an effective system of
internal contrals, including an extensive program of internal
audits, written administrative policies and procedures,

and programs to assure the selection and training of
gualified personnel.

These financial statements have been audited by the
Company’s independent auditors, Deloitte & Touche LLP.
Their audit was conducted in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Such standards include the evaluation of internal
controls to establish a basis for developing the scope of the

INDEPENDE

: Suite 900
ggrloollltctlse 661(;t?ienaissance Center

Detroit, Michigan 48243-1704
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
of DTE Energy Company

We have audited the consolidated statements of financial
position of DTE Energy Company and subsidiaries {the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the
related consolidated statements of operations, cash flows,
and changes in shareholders’ equity for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2001. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company's management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
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audit, as well as other procedures they deem necessary for
expressing an opinion as to whether the financial statements
are presented fairly.

The Board of Directors, through its Audit Committee consisting
solely of outside directors, meets with Deloitte & Touche LLP,
representatives of management and the Company’s internal
auditors to review the activities of each and to discuss
accounting, auditing and financial matters and the carrying
out of responsibilities and duties of each group. Deloitte &
Touche LLP has full and free access to meet with the Audit
Committee to discuss their audit results and opinions,
without management representatives present, to allow for
complete independence.

David E. Meador W

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Codiny 361y |

Anthony F'Earley, Jr.
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

N7 AUDITORS REPORT

February 26, 2002

audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presenta-
tion. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable hasis
for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of

DTE Energy Company and subsidiaries at December 31, 2001
and 2000, and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2001 in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company changed its method of accounting
for derivative instrument hedging activities in 2001.

e Tl L

Deloitte & Touche LLP




DTE Energy Company

Consolidated Statement of @PEMTH@M@

Year Ended December 31
{in Millions, Except per Share Amounts) 2001 2000 1999
Operating Revenues $ 7,849 $ 5,597 $ 4,728
Uperating Expenses
Fuel, purchased power and gas 3,250 2,233 1,335
Operation and maintenance 1,828 1,455 1,480
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 795 758 735
Taxes other than income 312 296 277
Merger and restructuring charges 288 25 -
Total Operating Expenses 7,153 4,767 3,827
Operating Income 628 830 901
Interest Expense and Other
Interest expense 468 336 340
Other — net 9 17 18
Total Interest Expense and Other 477 353 358
Income Before Income Taxes 219 477 543
Income Tax Provision (Benefit) (110} 9 60
Income Before Accounting Change 328 468 483
Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change 3 - -
Net Income $ 332 $ 468 $ 483
Basic Earnings per Common Share
Before accounting change $ 2145 $ 327 $ 333
Cumulative effect of accounting change .02 - -
Total $ 2.47 $ 3.27 $ 3.33
Diluted Earnings per Commen Share
Before accounting change $ 214 $ 327 $ 3.33
Cumulative effect of accounting change 02 ~ : -
Total $ 2.16 $ 3.27 $ 3.33
Average Common Shares
Basic 153 143 145
Diluted 154 143 145
Dividends Declared per Commen Share $ 2.08 $ 2.06 3 2.06

{See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.}
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DTE Energy Company

Consolidated Statement of FUNAM@DA& P@@HTH@N

December 31
{in Millions, Except Shares) 2001 2000
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 268 $ 64
Restricted cash 157 88
Accounts receivable
Customer {less allowance for doubtful accounts of $57 and $21, respectively) 851 562
Accrued unbilled revenues 242 188
Other 239 88
Inventories
Fuel and gas 343 193
Materials and supplies 162 142
Assets from risk management and trading activities 477 289
Deferred income taxes 47 -
Other 97 38
2,828 1,652
[nvestments
Nuclear decommissioning trust funds 417 398
Other 615 269
1,032 667
Property
Property, plant and equipment 12,087 13,162
Less accumulated depreciation and depletion {7.524) {5,775)
9,343 1,387
Qther Assets
Goodwill 2,003 24
Regulatory assets 1,204 2,688
Securitized regulatory assets 1,892 -
Assets from risk management and trading activities 149 -
Other 779 238
5,827 2,950
Total Assels $  19.228 $ 12,656

{See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.)
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December 3T

{in Millions, Except Shares) 2001 2000
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 897 404
Accrued interest 118 59
Dividends payable 84 3
Accrued payroll 108 103
Short-term borrowings €81 503
Income taxes 54 116
Current portion long-term debt, including capital leases 516 297
Liabilities from risk management and trading activities 425 280
Other 435 212
3178 2,047
Cther Liabilities
Deferred income taxes 1,478 1,801
Regulatory liabilities 187 3
Unamortized investment tax credit 180 167
Liabilities from risk management and trading activities 313 -
Other 1,375 590
3,533 2,561
Long-Term Delbt
Mortgage bonds, notes and other 5,892 3,894
Securitization bonds 1,673 -
Capital lease obligations 88 145
7,654 4,039
Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 1, 4, 5, 12-15)
Enterprises — Qbligated Mandaterily Redzemable Preferred Securities of Subsidiaries

Holding Solely Debentures of Enterprises 274 —
Shareholders’ Equity
Common stack, without par value, 400,000,000 shares authorized,

161,133,959 and 142,651,172 shares issued and outstanding, respectively 2,811 1,912
Retained earnings 1,846 2,097
Accumulated other comprehensive loss {68) -

4,589 4,009
Total Liabilities and Sharehelders” Equity 19,228 12,656

(See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.)
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DTE Energy Company

Consolidated Statement of @A@M F&@WS

Vear Ended December 31

(in Millions) 2001 2000 1999
Operating Activities
Net Income $ 332 468 483
Adjustments to reconcile netincome to net cash from
operating activities:
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 763 758 735
Goodwill amortization 29 - -
Merger and restructuring charges 215 - -
Deferred income taxes {7) {133) 26
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (2) (140) (93)
Inventories (76) 8 (6)
Prepaid pensions (14) 65 (51)
Payables (224) 196 19
Risk management and trading activities (80) 8 (16)
Other {128) (215) (13)
Net cash from operating activities 811 1,015 1,084
Investing Aclivities
Plant and equipment expenditures {1.085) (749) (739}
Acquisition of MCN Energy, net of cash acquired {1,212) - -
Proceeds from sale of assets ' 216 - -
Restricted cash for debt redemptions {70) 43 (10)
Other investments {124) 32 37
Net cash used for investing activities {2.286) (674) (712)
Financing Activities
Issuance of long-term debt 4,254 273 265
Redemption of long-term debt (1.423) (331) (548)
Short-term borrowings, net (282) 116 156
Capital lease obligations (107) {2) (43)
Repurchase of common stock (438) {70) -
Dividends on common stock (323) (296) {299)
Net cash from (used for) financing activities 1,879 {310) (469)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 204 31 (97)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period ¢4 33 130
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period $ 268 64 33
Supplementary Cash Flow Information
Interest paid (excluding interest capitalized) $ 433 334 340
Income taxes paid 43 104 152
Noncash Investing and Financing Activities
Issuance of common stock for acquisition of MCN Energy 1,850 - -

(See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.)
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DTE Energy Company
Consolidated Statement of

CRANGES [N SRARENOLDERS EQUNN

Common Stoek

Retained Accumulated Other
{Dollars in Millions, Shares in Thousands) Shares  Amoumnt Earnings Comprehensive Loss Total
Balance, December 31, 1998 145071  § 1951 $ 1747 $ - 3 3,698
Net income - - 483 - 483
Dividends declared an common stock - - (299) - {299)
Repurchase and retirement of common stock (30) (1 - - (1)
Unearned stock compensation - 7 - - {7)
Other - - 28 - 28
Balance, December 31, 1999 145,041 1,943 1,959 - 3,902
Netincome - - 468 - 468
Dividends declared on common stock - - (294) - (294)
Repurchase and retirement of common stock  (2,390) (32) (39) - 71)
Unearned stock compensation - 1 - - 1
Other - - 3 - ’ 3
Balance, December, 31, 2000 142,651 1,912 2,097 -~ 4,009
Netincome - - 332 - 332
Issuance of new shares 29,017 1,060 - - 1,060
Dividends declared on common stock - - (324) ~ {324)
Repurchase and retirement of common stock  (10,534) {155) (270) - (425)
Unearned stock compensation - {6) - - (6)
Other - - 1 - 11
Net change in unrealized losses on
derivatives, net of tax - - - {69) {69)
Net change in unrealized gain on
investments, net of tax - - - 1 1
Balance, December 31, 2001 161,138 $§ 2,811 $ 1,843 $ (63) $ 4,539

The Company did not have other comprehensive income (loss} in 2000 and 1999. The following table displays compre-
hensive income (loss) for 2001:

{in Millions) Total
Net income $ 332
Other comprehensive income {loss), net of tax:

Net unrealized losses on derivatives:

Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, net of taxes of $24 {42)
Losses arising during the period, net of taxes of $29 {53)
Amounts reclassified to earnings, net of taxes of $14 26
(69)
Net unrealized gain on investments:

Change in unrealized gain, net of taxes 1
Total other comprehensive loss {68)
Comprehensive incoms $ 254

{See Notes to Consalidated Financial Statements.)
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DTE Energy Company

(\ ﬂ?g

W ES to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 7 - SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES
Corporate Structure

DTE Energy Company (DTE Energy or the Company), a
Michigan corporation incorporated in 1995, is an exempt
holding company under the Public Utility Holding Company
Act of 1935. The Company is the parent holding company of
The Detroit Edison Company (Detroit Edison), the International
Transmission Company (ITC), DTE Enterprises Inc. (Enterprises),
and other subsidiaries engaged in energy trading, energy
services and other energy-related businesses.

Detroit Edison is a Michigan public utility engaged in the
generation, purchase, distribution and sale of electric energy
to 2.1 million customers in a 7,600-square-mile Southeastern
Michigan service area and is regulated by the Michigan
Public Service Commission (MPSC).

ITC is regulated by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
{(FERC) for the transmission of electric energy. Effective
January 2001, the transmission assets of Detroit Edison were
transferred to ITC, then a wholly owned subsidiary of Detroit
Edison. In May 2001, Detroit Edison distributed 100% of the
shares of ITC to the Company.

On May 31, 2001, the Company completed the acquisition
of MCN Energy Group Inc. (MCN Energy), now Enterprises,
as further discussed in Note 2. Enterprises {an exempt
holding company under the Public Utility Holding Company
Act of 1935) is a Michigan corporation primarily involved in
natural gas production, gathering, processing, transmission,
storage, distribution and energy marketing. Enterprises’
largest subsidiary, Michigan Consolidated Gas Company
(MichCon), is a naturai gas utility serving 1.2 million cus-
tomers in a 14,700-square-mile area in Michigan. MichCon
is regulated by the MPSC for the distribution and intrastate
transportation of natural gas.

Principles of Consolidation

The Company consolidates all majority owned subsidiaries.
The Company accounts for non-majority owned investments,
including investments in limited liability companies, partner-
ships and joint ventures, under the equity method when the
Company is able to influence the financial operating policies
of the investee. For all other investments, the Company
applies the cost method. The Company eliminates all
intercompany balances and transactions.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements were
prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
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accepted in the United States of America. In connection
with their preparation, management makes estimates and
assumptions that affect the reparted amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses, and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

The Company reclassified certain prior year balances to
canfarm to the 2001 presentation.

Revenues

Revenues from deliveries of electricity and the transportation
and storage of natural gas are recognized as services are
provided. Detroit Edison and MichCon accrue revenues for
electric, gas and steam heating services provided but
unbilled at month-end. Pursuant to a June 2000 MPSC order,
Detroit Edison’s rates are frozen for all classes of customers
through 2003. Through December 2001, MichCon's rates
included a component for cost of gas sold that was fixed at
$2.95 per thousand cubic feet (Mcf). Effective January 2002,
MichCon implemented a gas cost recovery {GCR) mechanism
that will allow it to recover the prudent and reasonable cost
of gas sold through annual proceedings before the MPSC.
The Company’'s Wholesale Marketing & Trading segment
applies mark-to-market accounting with unrealized gains
and losses recorded to earnings for commodity forwards,
financial derivatives and corresponding physical positions.

Comprehensive [ncome

The Company complies with the provisions of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 130, “Reporting
Comprehensive Income,” which establishes standards for
the reporting and display of comprehensive income. SFAS
No. 130 defines comprehensive income as the change in
common shareholders” equity during a period from transactions
and events from non-owner sources, including net income.

Cash Equivalents znd Restricted Cash

For purposes of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows,
the Company considers investments purchased with a maturity
of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash
required to be maintained for debt service requirements

is classified as restricted cash.

Inventories

Materials and supplies at Detroit Edison, MichCon and other
subsidiaries are valued at average cost. Detroit Edison also
values its fuel inventory at average cost.

Gas inventory at MichCon is determined using the last-in,
first-out (LIFQ) method. At December 31, 2001, the replacement




cost of gas remaining in storage exceeded the $6.2 million
LIFO cost by $30.9 million. During 2001, MichCon liquidated
2.1 billion cubic feet (Bcf) of prior years’ LIFO layers at an
average cost of $0.39 per Mcf. MichCon's average gas pur-
chase rate in 2001 was $2.83 per Mcf higher than the aver-
age LIFO liquidation rate. Applying LIFO cost in valuing the
liquidation, as opposed to using the average purchase rate,
decreased 2001 cost of gas by $5.8 million and increased
earnings by $3.8 million, net of taxes.

In the Wholesale Marketing & Trading segment, gas
inventory is priced using the fair value method.

Property, Retirement and Maintenance, and Depreciation
and Depletion

A summary of property by classification at December 31
is as follows:

{in Millions) 2001 2000
Property, Plant and Eguipment
Electric Utility
Electric Distribution $ 5407 $ 5,163
Electric Generation 6,163 6,423
Electric Transmission 802 772
Total Electric Utility 12,374 12,358
Gas Utility 2383 -
Non-regulated and other 1,730 804
17,087 13,162
Less Accumulated Depreciation and Depletion
Electric Utility
Electric Distribution (2082)  (1,924)
Electric Generation (2,948) (3,346}
Electric Transmission {407) (389}
Total Electric Utility (5417)  (5,659)
Gas Utility {1,625) -
Non-regulated and other (481) (116)
{7.524) (5,775)
Net Praperty, Plant and Equipment $ 9343 § 7,387

Property is stated at cost and includes construction-related
labor and materials. Expenditures for maintenance and
repairs are charged to expense as incurred, except for
Fermi 2. The cost of properties retired plus removal costs,
less salvage, at Detroit Edison and MichCon is charged to
accumulated depreciation,

The Company bases depreciation provisions for utility
property at Detroit Edison and MichCon on straight-line
and units of production rates approved by the MPSC. The
composite depreciation rate for Detroit Edison was 3.4% in
2001 and 2000, and 3.3% in 1999. The composite depreciation
rate for MichCon was 3.9% in 2001.

Non-regulated property is depreciated over its estimated
useful lives using straight-line, declining-balance and units
of production methods.

Detroit Edison accrues in advance the incremental costs,
including maintenance activities, that it anticipates incurring
during the next scheduled Fermi 2 refueling outage. Detroit

Edison began accruing approximately $21 million on a
pro-rata basis over an 18-month period beginning in
November 2001 for the next scheduled refueling outage
in the spring of 2003.

Natural Gas and Qil Exploration and Production

The successful efforts method of accounting is followed for
investments in oil and gas properties. Under the successful
efforts method, the Company capitalizes the costs of property
acquisitions, successful exploratory wells, development costs,
and support equipment and facilities. It expenses unsuccessful
exploratory wells when they are determined to be non-
productive. It also expenses production costs, overheads,
and exploration costs other than exploratory drilling.
Depreciation and depletion of proved oil and gas properties
are determined using the units-of-production method over
the life of the proved reserves.

Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets held and used by the Company are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. If the carrying amount of the asset exceeds
the expected future cash flows expected to be generated
by the asset, an impairment loss is recognized, and the
asset is written down to its estimated fair value. Assets
to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the
carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell.

Saoftware Costs

The Company capitalizes the cost of software
developed for internal use. These costs are amortized
on a straight-line basis over a maximum period of five
years, beginning with the project’s completion.

Deferred Debt Costs

The costs related to the issuance of long-term debt are
amortized over the life of each issue. In accordance with
MPSC regulations applicable to Detroit Edison and MichCon,
the unamartized discount, premium and expense related to
debt redeemed with a refinancing are amortized over the life of
the replacement issue. Discount, premium and expense on
early redemptions of debt are charged to earnings if they
relate to the generation business af Detroit Edison or ather
non-regulated operations of the Company.

Issuance of Stock by Equity Investees

The Company's policy is to recognize gains and losses for
the change in its proportionate share of an investee’s equity
resulting from additional equity raised by the investee. Plug
Power Inc. was founded in 1997 as a joint venture of the
Company and Mechanical Technology Incorporated to design
and develop on-site electric power generation systems
utilizing fuel cells. In October 1999, Plug Power completed
an initiat public offering (IP0O) of common stock at $15 per
share. After the [P0, the Company owned approximately 32%
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of Plug Power's outstanding common stock. Since Plug Power
is considered a development stage company, generally
accepted accounting principles require the Company to
record gains and losses from Plug Power stock issuances as
an adjustment to equity. As a result of Plug Power’s |P0, the
Company recorded an increase of $44 million in its investment
and an after-tax increase of $28 million to equity in 1999. In
July 2001, Plug Power completed another public offering of
common stock at $12 per share. After this public offering,
the Company owned approximately 28% of Plug Power's
outstanding common stock and recorded an increase of

$17 million in its investment and an after-tax increase of

$11 million to equity.

Recently lssued Accounting Pronouncements

Derivatives — Effective January 1, 2001, the Company adopted
SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative instruments and
Hedging Activities,” as amended. SFAS No. 133 establishes
accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments,
including certain derivative instruments embedded in other
contracts, and for hedging activities. SFAS No. 133 requires
that companies recognize all derivatives as either assets or
liabilities measured at fair value on the statement of financial
position. SFAS No. 133 provides an exception for certain
contracts that qualify as “normal purchases and sales.” To
gualify for this exception, certain criteria must be met,
including that it must be probable that the contract will result
in physical delivery.

See Note 13 — Financial and Other Derivative Instruments
herein for additional information.

Business Combinations, Goodwill and Intangible Assets -
In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
{(FASB) issued SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations,”
and No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”

The most significant changes made by SFAS No. 141 are:

1) requiring that the purchase method of accounting be
used for all business combinations initiated after June 30,
2001; and 2) establishing specific criteria for the recognition
of intangible assets separately from goodwill.

SFAS No. 142 primarily addresses the accounting for acquired
goodwill and intangible assets. The most significant changes
made by SFAS No. 142 are: 1) amortization of gaodwill will
cease, and goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets
will be tested for impairment at least annually; and 2) the
amortization period of intangible assets with finite lives will
continue to be amortized over their useful lives, but will no
longer be limited to 40 years.

The Company adopted SFAS No. 141, beginning July 1, 2001,
and adopted SFAS No. 142, effective January 1, 2002.
These standards only permit prospective application of the
new accounting; accordingly, their adoption will not affect
previously reported Company financial information. Goodwill
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was amortized by the Company through December 2001 using
the straight-line method principally over 40 years. The
Company ceased the amortization of goodwill on January 1,
2002, and will perform an assessment to determine whether
goodwill is impaired. The Company will have a transition
period from January 1, 2002 to June 30, 2002 to assess the
fair value of each reporting unit and determine if goodwill
has been impaired. The Company has not yet determined the
impact of the adoption of SFAS No. 142 on the consolidated
financial statements. The Company recorded approximately
$29 million of goodwill amortization in 2001.

Asset Retirement Obligations — In June 2001, the FASB issued
SFAS No. 143, "Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.”
This statement requires that the fair value of an asset retirement
obligation be recognized in the period in which itis incurred.
The associated asset retirement costs would be capitalized
as part of the carrying amount of the long-lived asset. It would
apply to legal obligations associated with the retirement of
long-lived assets that result from the acquisition, construction,
development and {or) the normal operation of a long-lived
asset. This statement is effective for financial statements
issued for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002. The
Company has not yet determined the impact of this statement
on the consolidated financial statements.

Long-Lived Assets — In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS
No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets.” This statement supersedes SFAS No. 121,
“Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and
for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of.” This statement
establishes a single accounting model for long-lived assets
to be disposed of by sale, whether previously held and used,
or newly acquired. This statement is effective for financial
statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December
15, 2001. The Company adopted this statement on January 1,
2002, with no impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Other

For significant accounting policies regarding regulatory
matters, see Note 4; income taxes, see Note 7; financial
and other derivative instruments, see Note 13; retirement
benefits and trusteed assets, see Note 15; and stock-based
compensation, see Note 16.

NOTE 2 - MICN ENERGY ACQUISITION

On May 31, 2001, the Company completed the acquisition

of MCN Energy by acquiring all of its outstanding shares of
common stock for a combination of cash and shares of the
Company’s common stock. See Note 8 — Common Stock and
Earnings per Share herein for additionat information. The
Company purchased the outstanding common stock

of MCN Energy for $2.3 billion and assumed existing MCN
Energy debt and preferred securities of $1.5 billion.




The Company accounted for the acquisition using the purchase
method. The allocation of the purchase price included in the
consolidated statement of financial position is preliminary
and may be revised up to one year from the date of acquisition
due to adjustments in the estimated fair value of the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed, and refinements of man-
agement’s plans to divest of certain assets acquired. The
Company daes not expect that additional revisions to the
allocation of the purchase price in 2002 will be material.

The excess purchase price over the fair value of net assets
acquired totaled approximately $2 billion and was classified
as goodwill. The Company began amortizing goodwill on
June 1, 2001, an a straight-line basis using a 40-year life.

In accordance with the adoption of SFAS No. 142, “Good-
will and Other Intangible Assets,” on January 1, 2002, the
amortization of goodwill ceased, and it will be tested for
impairment on an annual basis.

The following unaudited pro forma summary presents
information for the Company as if the acquisition became
effective at the beginning of the respective periods. The pro
forma amounts include the impact of certain adjustments,
such as acquiring the operations of MCN Energy and issuing
$1.35 billion of debt and 29 million shares of common stock to
finance the acquisition. The pro forma amounts do not reflect
any benefits from synergies that the Company expects to achieve
from combining operations, do not reflect the actual results
that would have accurred had the companies been combined
for the periods presented, and are not necessarily indicative
of future results of operations of the combined companies.

Pro Forma
Vear Ended
December 31
{in Millions, except per share amounts) 2001 2000
Operating revenues $ 9393 $ 82388
Income before accounting change $ 534§ 426
Net income $ 537§ 426
Basic earnings per share:
Before accounting change $ 323 § 248
Total § 325§ 248
Diluted earnings per share;
Before accounting change $ 321 $ 248
Total $ 323§ 248

The following tabie summarizes the estimated fair values of the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition;

{in Millions) At May 31, 200
Current assets, net of cash acquired $ 859
investments 154
Property, plant and equipment, net 1,648
Other assets 1,218
Assets held for sale 257
Goodwill 1,997
Total assets acquired 6,133
Current liabilities (1,496)
Other liabilities {1,153}
Preferred securities (274)
Long-term debt (938)
Total liabilities assumed {3,861)
Net assets acquired g 2,272

NOTE 3 - MERGER AND RESTRUCTURING CHARGES

On May 31, 2001, the Company completed the acquisition of
MCN Energy. The Company incurred merger-related charges
and restructuring charges associated with the acquisition. The
merger-related charges of $27 million ($18 million after tax) in
2001 and $25 million ($16 million after tax) in 2000, consisted
primarily of system integration, relocation, legal, accounting
and consulting costs. Restructuring charges of $241 million
{8157 million after tax) in 2001, were primarily associated with

a work force reduction plan. The plan included early retirement
incentives along with voluntary separation arrangements for
1,186 employees, primarily in overlapping corporate support
functions. The merger and restructuring costs had the effect of
decreasing earnings by $268 million {$175 million after tax) and
$25 million {$16 million after tax) in 2001 and 2000, respectively.
Approximately $53 million of the merger and restructuring
charges have been paid as of December 31, 2001, including
approximately $20 million of benefits, and it is anticipated that
the remaining benefits of $215 million have been or will be paid
from retirement plans.

NOTE 4 - REGULATORY MATTERS

Regulation /

Detroit Edison and MichCon are subject to the
requlatory jurisdiction of the MPSC, which issues
orders pertaining to rates, recovery of certain =
costs, including the costs of generating facilities ﬁ
and regulatory assets, conditions of service,

accounting and operating-related matters.

Detroit Edison’s electric distribution operations,

MichCon’s gas distribution and transportation opera-

tions, and the transmission operations of [TC meet the

criteria of SFAS No. 71, “Accounting for the Effects of Certain
Types of Regulation.” This accounting standard recognizes

the cost-based ratemaking process, which results in differ-
ences in the application of generally accepted accounting
principles between regulated and non-regulated businesses.
SFAS No. 71 requires the recarding of regulatory assets

and liabilities for certain transactions that would have been
treated as revenue and expense in non-regulated businesses.
Regulatory assets represent costs that will be recovered from
customers through the ratemaking process. Regulatory liabili-
ties represent benefits that will be refunded to customers
through reduced rates. Continued applicability of SFAS No. 71
requires that rates be designed to recover specific costs of
providing regulated services and be charged to and collected
from customers. Management believes that currently avail-
able facts support the continued application of SFAS No. 71
to these businesses. Future regulatory changes or changes

in the competitive environment could result in the Company
discontinuing the application of SFAS No. 71 for some or all

of its businesses and require the write-off of the portion of
any regulatory asset or liability that was no longer probable
of recovery through rates or refund.
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Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

The Company recarded the following regulatory assets
and liabiiities at December 31:

{in Millions) 2001 2000
Assels
Unamortized nuclear costs $ - § 2328
Securitized regulatory assets 1,682 -
Recoverable income taxes related
to securitized regulatory assets 923 -
Other recoverable income taxes 128 196
Unamortized loss on reacquired debt 37 82
Electric Choice implementation costs 53 57
Deferred environmental costs 29 -
Accrued GCR revenues 17 -
Other 20 25
Total Assets $ 2885 $ 2688
Liabilites
Refundable income taxes $§ 144 8 2
Other 43 1
Total Liabilities $ 187 § 3

Electric Industry Restructuring

MPSC orders issued in 1997 and 1998 altered the regulatory
process in Michigan and provided a plan for transition to
competition for the generation business of Detroit Edisan.
Therefore, effective December 31, 1398, Detroit Edison’s
generation business no longer met the criteria of SFAS No. 71.
Also, at that time, the 1,150 megawatt (MW) Fermi 2 nuclear
generating plant was determined to be impaired. Since a
December 1998 MPSC order provided for full recovery of
Fermi 2 through the regulated transmission and distribution
businesses, a regulatory asset was established representing
the net book value of Fermi 2 and related assets.

Michigan Legislation — In June 2000, Public Act 141 (PA 141)
became effective. PA 141 provided Detroit Edison with the right
to recover stranded costs, codified and established January
1, 2002 as the date for full implementation of the MPSC's
existing Electric Choice Program, and required the MPSC to
reduce residential electric rates by 5%. At that time, Public
Act 142 (PA 142) also became effective. PA 142 provided for
the recovery through securitization of “qualified costs” which
consist of an electric utility’s regulatory assets, plus various
costs assaciated with, or resulting from, the establishment

of a competitive electric market and the issuance of
securitization bonds.

Acting pursuant to PA 141, in an order issued in June 2000,
the MPSC reduced Detroit Edison’s residential electric rates
by 5% and imposed a rate freeze for all classes of customers
through 2003. In April 2001, commercial and industrial
rates were lowered by 5% as a result of savings derived
from the issuance of securitization bonds in March 2001, as
subsequently discussed.
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The legislation also contains provisions preventing rate
increases for residential customers through 2005, for small
business customers through 2004, and remaining business
customers through 2003, Certain costs may be deferred after
2003 and during the period that rates are frozen. This rate cap
may be lifted when certain market test provisions are met,
specifically, an electric utility has no more than 30% of
generation capacity in its relevant market, with considera-
tion for capacity needed to meet a utility’s responsibility to
serve its customers. Statewide, multi-utility transmission
system improvements also are required. Detroit Edison
expects that these market and transmission improvement
conditions will be met, and the rate cap will not continue
after the dates specified in the legistation.

In several orders issued in June 2000, the MPSC determined
that adjusting rates for changes in fuel and purchased
power expenses through continuance of the power supply
cost recovery (PSCR) clause would be inconsistent with the
rate freeze. Detroit Edison was not permitted to collect the
1998 PSCR under-recovery of $9 million, plus accrued interest
of $3 million. Also, Detroit Edison was not required to refund
approximately $55 million of liabilities for over-recoveries of
PSCR expenses for 1999 and 2000, and disallowances under
the Fermi 2 performance standard mechanism. In January
2002, the Michigan Court of Appeals rejected appeals filed
by parties opposing the MPSC's actions in this proceeding.

In October 2000, the MPSC initiated a case to determine the
methodology of calculating net stranded costs as required
by PA 141. As a result of an MPSC order in December 2001,
Detroit Edison would recover the net stranded costs associ-
ated with its electric generation operations. Specifically,
there would be an annual filing with the MPSC comparing
actual revenues from the generation services to the revenue
requirements, including an allowance for the cost of capital,
to recover the costs of generation operations. The MPSC, in
its orders, determined that Detroit Edison had no stranded
costs using 2000 data, established a zero 2002 transition
charge and deferred the issues of refining the net stranded
costs methodology and the recalculating of net stranded
costs to 2002. The MPSC also determined that Detroit Edison
should provide a full and offsetting credit for the securitization
and tax charges applied ta Electric Chaice hills in 2002,

In addition, the MPSC ordered an additional credit on
Electric Choice bills equivalent to the 5% rate reduction
benefiting full service customers funded by savings

derived from securitization. The provisions of this order

will likely encourage additional customer participation in
the Electric Choice Program and result in the loss of margins
from providing generation services. Detroit Edison has
asked for rehearing and clarification on certain aspects

of the order and has requested that the MPSC initiate an
expedited proceeding to implement those clarifications

and interpretations.




{n June 2001, pursuant to PA 141, Detroit Edison filed with
the MPSC an application outlining a proposal to unbundle its
existing rates. Detroit Edison’s initial proposal did not unbundle
all tariffs but instead included a bill message stating the
amount of distribution charges a customer would incur under
Electric Choice. A December 2001 MPSC order found that
the June 2001 filing did not meet the requirements of PA 141
and ordered Detroit Edison to make a new filing. In February
2002, Detroit Edison made a filing that unbundled existing
rates using updated cost data. Detroit Edison is unable to
determine the timing or outcome of this proceeding.

In another December 2001 order, the MPSC finalized the
prices, terms and conditions contained in the Retail Access
Service Tariff (RAST) that will likely encourage additional
customer participation in the Electric Choice Program. The
implementation of the order will result in increased expenses
associated with implementing Electric Choice, including
meter installation, meter reading and computer system
enhancements. Detroit Edison has asked for rehearing

and clarification on certain aspects of the order.

Securitization — In an order issued in November 2000 and
clarified in January 2001, the MPSC approved the issuance
of securitization bonds to recover gualified costs that include
the unamortized investment in Fermi 2, costs of certain other
regulatory assets, Electric Choice implementation costs,
costs of issuing securitization bonds, and the costs of retiring
securities with the proceeds of securitization.

Detroit Edison formed The Detroit Edison Securitization Funding
LLC (Securitization LLC), a wholly owned subsidiary, for the
purpase of securitizing its qualified costs. In March 2001, the
Securitization LLC issued $1.75 billion of Securitization Bonds,
and Detroit Edison sold $1.75 billion of qualified costs to the
Securitization LLC. The Securitization Bonds mature over a
period of up to 15 years and have an average interest rate

of 6.1%. Detroit Edison used the proceeds to retire debt and
equity in approximately equal amounts. The Company like-
wise retired approximately 50% debt and 50% equity with
the praceeds received as the sole shareholder of Detroit Edison.
Detroit Edison implemented a non-bypassable surcharge on
its customer bills, effective March 26, 2001, for the purpose
of collecting amounts sufficient to provide for the payment of
interest and principal and the payment of income taxes on
the additional revenue from the surcharge. As a result of
securitization, Detroit Edison established a regulatory asset
for securitized costs including costs that had previously
been recorded in other regulatory asset accounts.

The Securitization LLC is independent of Detroit Edison, as is
its ownership of the securitization property. Due to principles
of consolidation, qualified costs sold by Detroit Edison to the
Securitization LLC and the $1.75 billion of securitization bonds
appear on the Company’s consolidated statement of financial
position. The Company makes no claim to these assets.
Ownership of such assets has vested in the Securitization LLC
and been assigned to the trustee for the Securitization Bonds.

Funds collected by Detroit Edison, acting in the capacity of a
servicer for the Securitization LLC, are remitted to the trustee
for the Securitization Bonds. Neither the securitization property
nor funds collected from Detroit Edison’s customers for

the payment of costs related to the Securitization LLC and
Securitization Bonds are available to Detroit Edison’s creditors.

Transmission Business — Effective January 2001, the
transmission assets owned by Detroit Edison were transferred
to a wholly owned subsidiary, ITC. In May 2001, Detroit Edison
distributed 100% of the shares of ITC to the Company. Detroit
Edison continues tc bill and collect transmission revenues
as currently authorized in its bundled rates approved by the
MPSC. ITC provides transmission services to customers of
Detroit Edison and other non-affiliated customers. In August
2001, ITC filed with the FERC to join the Midwest Independent
System Operator (MIS0) and withdrew from the Alliance
Regional Transmission Qrganization. In September 2001,

ITC filed to suspend the effective date of its transmission
rates appraved by the FERC in 2000, due to the filing of a

rate structure by the MISQ.

Gas Industry Restructuring

Regulatory Reform Plan — Through December 2001,
MichCon was operating under an MPSC-approved
Regulatory Reform Plan which included a comprehen-
sive experimental three-year Gas Choice Program, a
Gas Sales Program and an income sharing mechanism.
The Gas Choice Program allowed a limited number

of customers to purchase gas from suppliers other
than MichCon. The Gas Sales Program suspended

the GCR mechanism for customers who continue

to purchase gas from MichCon, and fixed the gas
commodity component of MichCon's sales rates at
$2.95 per Mcf, The income sharing mechanism allowed
customers to share in profits when actual returns on equity
from utility operations exceed predetermined thresholds.
Based on the MPSC approved formula, the Company
believes that no income sharing is required in 2001.

Regulatory Changes — MichCon returned to the GCR
mechanism in January 2002 when the Gas Sales Program
expired. Under the GCR mechanism, the gas commodity
component of MichCon’s gas sales rates will be based on
market prices and set through the GCR process. In December
2001, the MPSC issued an order that permitted MichCon to
implement GCR factors of up to $3.62 per Mcf for January
2002 biflings and up to $4.38 per Mcf for the remainder of
2002. The order also allowed MichCon to recognize a
regulatory asset of approximately $14 million representing
the difference between the $4.38 factor and the $3.62 factor
for volumes that were unbilled at December 31, 2001.

The regulatory asset will be subject to the 2002 GCR
reconciliation process.
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In December 2001, the MPSC also approved MichCon’s
application for a voluntary, expanded permanent Gas Choice
Pragram which would replace the experimental program
that expires in March 2002. Effective April 2002, up to approx-
imately 40% of MichCon'’s customers could elect to purchase
gas from suppliers other than MichCon. Effective April 2003,
up to approximately 60% of customers would be eligible

and by April 2004, all of MichCon'’s 1.2 million customers can
participate in the program. The MPSC also approved the use
of deferred accounting for the recovery of implementation
costs of the Gas Choice Program.

Other

In accordance with a November 1997 MPSC order, Detroit
Edison reduced rates by $53 million annually to reflect the
scheduled reduction in the revenue requirement for Fermi 2.
The $53 million reduction was effective in January 1999.

In addition, the November 1997 MPSC order authorized

the deferral of $30 million of storm damage costs and
amortization and recovery of the costs over a 24-month
period commencing January 1998. After various legal appeals,
the Michigan Court of Appeals remanded back to the MPSC
for hearing the November 1997 order. In December 2000,
the MPSC issued an order reopening the case for hearing.
The parties in the case have agreed to a stipulation of

fact and waiver of hearing. In February 2002, a MPSC
administrative law judge issued a proposal for decision

that supports Detroit Edison’s actions in this matter.

A final order is expected in 2002.

The Company is unable to predict the outcome of the
regulatory matters discussed herein. Resolution of these
matters is dependent upon future MPSC orders, which
may impact the financial position and results of operations
of the Company.

NOTE 5 - FERMI 2

General

Fermi 2, a nuclear generating unit, began commercial
operation in January 1988. The Nuclear Regulatory
Commission {NRC) maintains jurisdiction over the licensing
and operation of Fermi 2. Fermi 2 has a design electrical
rating (net) of 1,150 MW. This unit represents approximately
10% of Detroit Edison’s summer net rated capability. The
net book balance of the Fermi 2 plant was written off at
December 31, 1998, and an equivalent regulatory asset
was established. In 2001, the Fermi 2 regulatory asset

was securitized. See Note 4 — Regulatory Matters.

Ownership of an operating nuclear generating unit subjects
Detroit Edison to significant additional risks. Fermi 2 is regulated
by a number of different governmental agencies concerned
with public health, safety and environmental protection.
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Insurznce

Detroit Edison insures Fermi 2 with property damage insurance
provided by Nuclear Electric Insurance Limited (NEIL). The
NEIL insurance policies provide $500 million of primary
coverage (with a $1 million deductible) and $2.25 billion of
excess coverage for stabilization, decontamination and
debris removal costs, repair and/or replacement of property
and decommissioning. The combined limits provide total
property damage insurance of $2.75 billion.

Detroit Edison maintains an insurance policy with NEIL
providing for extra expenses, including certain replacement
power costs necessitated by Fermi 2's unavailability due to
an insured event. These policies have a 12-week waiting
period and provide for three years of coverage.

Terrorism coverage under the NEIL policies has been modified
for multiple terrorism losses occurring within one year after
the first loss from terrorism. NEIL would make available to
all insured entities up to $3.2 billion and any amounts it
recovers from reinsurance, government indemnity or other
sources for such losses.

Under the NEIL palicies, Detroit Edison could be liable for
maximum assessments of up to approximately $27 mitlion
per event if the loss associated with any one event should
exceed the accumulated funds available to NEIL.

As required by federal law, Detroit Edison maintains $200 million
of public liability insurance for a nuclear incident. For liabilities
arising out of terrorist acts, the policy is now subject to one
industry aggregate limit of $200 million. Further, under the
Price-Anderson Amendments Act of 1988 (Act), deferred
premium charges up to $84 million could be levied against
gach licensed nuclear facility, but not more than $10 million
per year per facility. Thus, deferred premium charges could
be levied against all owners of licensed nuclear facilities in
the event of a nuclear incident at any of these facilities. The
Act will expire on August 1, 2002. It is unknown whether this
statute will be renewed or modified.

Decommissioning

The NRC has jurisdiction over the decommissioning of nuclear
power plants and requires decommissioning funding based
upon a formula. The MPSC and FERC regulate the recovery
of costs of decommissioning nuclear power plants and
both require the use of external trust funds to finance the
decommissioning of Fermi 2. Rates approved by the MPSC
provide for the decommissioning costs of Fermi 2. Detroit
Edison is continuing to fund FERC jurisdictional amounts
for decommissioning even though explicit provisions are
notincluded in FERC rates. The Company believes that the
MPSC and FERC coliections will be adequate to fund the
estimated cost of decommissioning using the NRC formula.

Detroit Edison has established external trust funds to hold
decommissioning and low-level radioactive waste disposal
funds collected from customers. During 2001, 2000 and




1999, Detroit Edison collected $38 million in each year from
customers for decommissioning and low-level radioactive
waste disposal. Such amounts were recorded as components
of depreciation, depletion and amortization expense, and

in other liabilities. Net unrealized losses of $23 million and
$18 million in 2001 and 2000, respectively, were recorded
as adjustments to the nuclear decommissioning trust funds
and other liabilities. At December 31, 2001, investments in
the external trust funds consisted of approximately 50.7%
in publicly traded equity securities, 46.1% in fixed debt
instruments and 3.2% in cash equivalents. Investments in
debt and equity securities held within the external trust
funds are classified as “available for sale.”

At December 31, 2001 and 2000, Detroit Edison had

reserves of $373 million and $351 million for the future
decommissioning of Fermi 2, and $29 million and $32 million
for the decommissioning of Fermi 1, a nuclear unit that has
been shut down since 1972, respectively. Detroit Edison also
had a reserve of $15 million for low-level radioactive waste
disposal costs at December 31, 2001 and 2000. These reserves
are included in other liabilities, with an equivalent amount
deposited in external trust funds. Itis estimated that the cost
of decommissianing Fermi 2, when its license expires in 2025,
will be $913 million in 2001 dollars and $3.5 billion in 2025 dollars,
using a 6% inflation rate. In 2001, the Company began the
decommissioning of Fermi 1, with the goal of removing the
radioactive material and terminating the Fermi 1 license.
The decommissioning is expected to be completed by 2007.

Nuclear Fuel Disposal Costs

In accordance with the Federal Nuclear Waste Policy Act of
1982, Detroit Edison has a contract with the U.S. Department
of Energy (DOE) for the future storage and disposal of spent
nuclear fuel from Fermi 2. Detroit Edison is obligated to pay
the DOE a fee of one mill per net kilowatthour of Fermi 2
electricity generated and sold. The fee is a component of
nuclear fuel expense. Delays have occurred in the DOE's
program for the acceptance and disposal of spent nuclear
fuel at a permanent repository. Until the DOE is able to fulfill
its obligation under the contract, Detroit Edison is responsible
for the spent nuclear fuel storage. Detroit Edison estimates
that existing storage capacity will be sufficient until 2007.

NOTE 6 — JOINTLY QWNED UTILITY PLANT

Detroit Edison’s portion of jointly owned utility plant at
December 31, 2001 is as follows:

Ludingten
Belle Pumped
River Storage
In-service date 1984-1985 1973
Ownership interest * 49%
Investment {millions) $ 1031 § 1%
Accumulated depreciation (millions) 3 461 $ 102

*Detroit Edison’s ownership interest is 62.78% in Unit No. 1, 81.39% of the
portion of the facilities applicable to Belle River used jointly by the Belle
River and St. Clair Power Plants, 49.58% in certain transmission lines and,
at December 31, 2001, 75% in facilities used in common with Unit No. 2.

Belle River

The Michigan Public Power Agency (MPPA) has an ownership
interast in Belle River Unit Na. 1 and certain other related
facilities. MPPA is entitled to 18.61% of the capacity and
energy of the entire plant (1,026 MW) and is responsible

for the same percentage of the plant’s operation and
maintenance expenses and capital improvements.

Ludingten Pumped Storage

Operation, maintenance and other expenses of the Ludington
Pumped Storage Plant {1,872 MW) are shared by Detroit
Edison and Consumers Energy Company in proportion to
their respective ownership interests in the plant.

NOTE 7 - INCOME TAXES

DTE Energy files a consolidated federal income tax return.

Total income tax expense as a percent of income before
tax varied from the statutory federal income tax rate for

the following reasons:
2001 2000 1959

Statutory income tax rate BO%  3B0%  350%
Alternate fuels credit {75.3} (27.1) (21.3)
Removal costs 02 {5.0) (2.3)
Investment tax credit (3.6) (2.2} (1.9)
Depreciation {5.7) 23 15
Goodwill amortization 4.7 - -
Research expenditures tax credit {3.0) - -
ESOP {1.9) - -
Other-net {0.7) {1.1} 0.1
Effective income tax rate {30.3)% 19% 11.1%
Components of income tax expense (henefit)
were as follows:
{in Millions) 20 2000 1999
Current federal and other

income tax expense $ 176 $ 268 $ 260
Deferred federal income tax

benefit {113} {118) (73)
Alternate fuels credit (16%) (130) (116}
Investment tax credit {8) (1) (11)

Total § (110 § 9§ 60

Internal Revenue Code Section 29 provides a tax credit
(alternate fuels credit) for qualified fuels produced and
sold by a taxpayer to an unrelated party during the taxable
year. Alternate fuels credits earned but not utilized of
$274 million are carried forward indefinitely as alternative
minimum tax credits.

At December 31, 2001, the Company had a net operating
loss carryforward of $424 million expiring in 2019 and 2020
The Company does not believe that a valuation allowance
is required, as it expects to utilize these losses prior to
their expiration.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for

the estimated future tax effect of temporary differences
between the tax basis of assets or liabilities and the
reported amounts in the financial statements. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are classified as current or
noncurrent according to the classification of the related
assets or liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities not
related to assets or liabilities are classified according ta
the expected reversal date of the temporary differences.

Deferred income tax assets {liabilities) were comprised
of the following at December 31;

{in Millions) 2001 2000
Property $ (1,341) $ (1,212)
Securitized regulatory assets {279) -
Unamortized nuclear costs - (822)
Alternative minimum tax credit carryforward 274 125
Property taxes {63) {68)
Investment tax credit g0 90
Contributions in aid of construction 102 90
Merger basis differences 213 -
Net operating loss 148 -
Other 75 (66)

$ {0.437) $ (1,863)

$ 2479) $ (2,414)
1,048 551

Deferred income tax liabilities
Deferred income tax assets

$ {1,431) $ (1,863)

The federal income tax returns of the Company are
settled through 1992,

WOTE 8 — COMMON STOCK AND EARNINGS
PER SHARE

Common Stock

On May 31, 2001, the Company issued approximately

29 million shares of common stock, valued at $1.06 billion,
as part of the consideration to purchase all of the out-
standing shares of MCN Energy common stock. See

Note 2 - MCN Energy Acquisition. The newly issued

shares were valued at the average market price of the
Company’s common stock for a period of five days, including
February 28, 2001, which was the date the Company and
MCN Energy announced the revised merger agreement.

During 2001, the Company repurchased approximately 10.5 million
shares of common stock at an aggregate cost of approximately
$438 million. In 2000, the Company repurchased approximately
2.3 million shares of common stock at an aggregate cost of
approximately $70 million.

The Company records unearned compensation as a reduction
in common stock. The unearned compensation represents
the value of non-vested stock awards granted under the
DTE Energy Company 2001 Stock Incentive Plan and the
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Long-Term Incentive Plan adopted in 1995. The number
of non-vested stock awards is included in the number of
common shares outstanding; however, for purposes of
computing basic earnings per share, non-vested stock
awards are excluded.

Sharehelders’ Rights Plan

The Company has a Shareholders’ Rights Plan that is designed
to maximize shareholders’ value in the event the Company is
acquired. The rights are attached to and trade with shares
of the Company’s common stock until they are exercisable
upon certain triggering events. The rights will expire in 2007.

Earnings per Share

The Company reports both basic and diluted earnings per
share. Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing
income avaitable to common stockholders by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding during the
period. Diluted earnings per share assumes the issuance of
potentially dilutive common shares outstanding during the
period and the repurchase of common shares that would
have occurred with proceeds from the assumed issuance.
These include the assumed exercise of stock options, vesting
of non-vested stock awards, and issuance of performance
share awards. A reconciliation of both calculations is
presented in the table below.

Options to purchase approximately 2.34 million shares of :
common stock at an average price of $43.86 per share were
outstanding during 2001. These securities were not included

in the computation of diluted EPS because the options’ exer-

cise price was greater than the average market price of the

common shares, thus making these securities anti-dilutive.

{in Thousands,

except per share amounts) 2001

Basic Earnings per Share

Income before accounting
change

Average number of common
shares outstanding

Earnings per share of
common stock based on
average number of
shares outstanding $§ 215 § 3271 & 333

2000 1999

$ 328745 483550 § 482,653

153,120 143,116 145,047

Diluted Earnings per Share

Income hefore accounting
change

Average number of common
shares outstanding

Incremental shares from
stock-based awards 639 149 89

Average number of dilutive

$ 323745 § 468550 S 482,653

153,120 143116 145,047

shares outstanding 153,759 143,265 145,136
Earnings per share of

common stock assuming

issuance of incremental

shares $ 214 § 327 § 333




NOTE 9 - PREFERRED SECURITIES

DTE Energy and Enterprises-0bligated Mandatoriiy
Redeemable Preferred Securities of Subsidiaries

DTE Energy has established a trust, and Enterprises has
established various trusts and a partnership, each formed for
the sole purpose of issuing preferred securities and lending
the gross proceeds thereof to their respective parent. The
sole assets of the trusts and partnership are debentures of
the parent with terms similar to those of the related preferred
securities. Summarized information for mandatorily
redeemable preferred securities of subsidiaries holding
solely debentures of the parent is as foliows:

Liguidation WMatwiiyel Earliest

Value  Underlying Redemption
Per Share  Security Dale

fin Millions, except Dec. 31,
per share amounts) 2001

WICK Financing |
8-5/8% Trust Originated
Preferred Securities $ m $ 25 2036 2001
(3,200,000 preferred securities)
Dividends payable quarterly

MICN Finarcing Il
8-5/8% Trust Preferred
Securities 938 25 2038 2003
(4,000,000 preferred securities)
Dividends payable quarterly

MCN Wichigar Ltd. Partnership
9-3/8% Redeemable
Cumulative Preferred
Securities 87 25 2024 1999
(4,000,000 preferred securities) )
Dividends payable monthiy

MCN Financing 11
1.25% Preferred Securities 2 50 2002 2002
(30,600 preferred securities)
Dividends payable quarterly

$ 274

The preferred securities carry similar provisions relating
to their respective parent as described below.

The preferred securities allow the parent the right to extend
interest payment periods on the debentures and, as a
consequence, dividend payments on the preferred securities
can be deferred by the trusts and partnership during any
such interest payment period. In the event that the parent
exercises this right, the parent may not declare dividends

on its common stock.

In the event of default, holders of the preferred securities
will be entitled to exercise and enforce the trusts” and partner-
ship's creditor rights against the parent, which may include
acceleration of the principal amount due on the debentures.
The Company and Enterprises have issued guaranties

with respect to payments on the preferred securities. These
guaranties, when taken together with the parent's obligations
under the debentures, the related indenture, and the trusts
and partnership documents, provide full and unconditional
guaranties of the trusts’ and partnership’s obligations under
the preferred securities.

Financing costs for these issuances were deferred and
are reflected as a reduction in the carrying value of the
preferred securities. These costs are being amortized using
the straight-line method over the estimated lives of the
related securities.

In January 2002, DTE Energy Trust 1, a wholly owned trust

of the Company, issued $180 million of 7.8% Trust Preferred
Securities with a liquidation value of $25 per share. The
maturity date of the underlying security is February 2032.

The earliest date the securities can be redeemed is February
2007. The proceeds were used to redeem the 8-5/8% Trust
QOriginated Preferred Securities and the 9-3/8% Redeemable
Cumulative Preferred Securities in February 2002,

Preferred and Preference Securities - Avtherized
and Unissued

At December 31, 2001, the Company had 5 million shares of

preferred stock without par value authorized, with no shares
issued. Of such amount, 1.6 millicn shares were reserved far
issuance in accordance with the Shareholders’ Rights Plan.

At December 31, 2001, Detroit Edison had 6.75 million shares
of preferred stock with a par value of $100 per share and

30 million shares of preference stock with a par value

of $1 per share authorized, with no shares issued.

At December 31, 2001, Enterprises had 25 million shares
of preferred stock without par value authorized, with -
no shares issued.

At December 31, 2001, MichCon had 7 million shares
of preferred stock with a par value of $1 per share and
4 million shares of preference stock with a par value of
$1 per share authorized, with no shares issued.
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NOTE 10 - LONG-TERW DEBT

The Company’s long-term debt outstanding and
weighted average interest rates of debt outstanding
at December 31 were:

{in Millions) 2001 2000
Mortgage Bonds
7.5% due 2001 to 2023 § 1,073 § 1,564
Remarketed Notes
Secured
6.1% due 2034 to 2038 253 410
Unsecured
6.7% due 2002 to 2038 603 400
Tast Exxempt Revenue Bonds
Secured
Installment Sales Contracts
6.6% due 2004 to 2024 125 125
Loan Agreements
5.8% due 2008 to 2030 882 882
Unsecurad
instaliment Sales Contracts
6.4% due 2004 24 24
Loan Agreements
4.8% due 2024 to 2030 113 13
Senior Notes
Secured
6.2% due 2005 to 2039 1,007 -
Unsecured
6.3% due 2002 to 2011 1,557 -
Quarterly Income Delt Securities (QUIDS)
7.5% due 2026 to 2028 385 385
Nen-Recourse Debt
1.7% due 2001 to 2017 185 247
Other Long-Term Delt 103 -
6,321 4,150
Less amount due within one year {429) (256)

$ 582 $ 35894

Securitization Bonds

6.1% due 2002 to 2016 $ 1746 8 -
Less amount due within one year {73) -
$ 1673 § -

In the years 2002-2006, the Company's long-term debt
maturities are $502 million, $379 million, $466 million, $448
million and $683 million, respectively.

Substantially all of the net utility properties of Detroit Edison
and MichCon, totaling approximately $8.3 billion, are pledged
as security for the payment of outstanding mortgage bonds
and other secured debt.

Each series of QUIDS provides that interest will be paid

quarterly. However, Detroit Edison has the right to extend the
interest payment period on the QUIDS for up to 20 consecutive
interest payment periods. Interest would continue to accrue
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during the deferral periad. If this right is exercised, Detroit
Edison may not declare or pay dividends on, or redeem,
purchase or acquire, any of its capital stock during the
deferral period.

At December 31, 2001, $856 million of notes were subject to
periodic remarketings. Remarketing agents remarket these
securities at the lowest interest rate necessary to produce
a par bid. In the event that a remarketing fails, Standby Note
Purchase Agreements and/or Letters of Credit are in place
for a portion of the notes that provide that banks will purchase
the securities and, after the conclusion of all necessary
proceedings, remarket the bonds. In the event the banks’
obligations under the Standby Note Purchase Agreements
and/or Letters of Credit are not honored, then the Company
would be required to purchase any securities subject to a
failed remarketing.

The Company financed the cash consideration of the acquisition
of MCN Energy through the issuance of $1.35 billion of debt
in May 2001. The Company issued three series of senior notes
with differing maturities ranging from three to 10 years in the
following denominations: (i) $250 million of 6.00% senior notes
due 2004; (ii) $500 million of 6.45% senior notes due 2006; and
{iiii) $600 million of 7.05% senior notes due 2011. Interest is
payable on a semi-annual basis beginning December 1, 2001.

Detroit Edison formed the Securitization LLC, a wholly owned
subsidiary, for the purpose of securitizing its stranded costs.
In March 2001, the Securitization LLC issued $1.75 billion of
Securitization Bonds, Series 2001-1, and Detroit Edison sold
$1.75 billion of qualified costs to the Securitization LLC.
During the year ended December 31, 2001, Detroit Edison
used proceeds from securitization along with other
refinancings to redeem $1.3 billion in debt, of which

$1.1 billion represented unscheduled redemptions.

During 2001, Detroit Edison issued $200 million of 5.05%
senior secured notes due 2005, and $500 million of 6.125%
senior secured notes due 2010. Interest is payable on a
semi-annual basis beginning April 1, 2002. Detroit Edison
also issued $139.9 million of 5.45% tax-exempt bonds

due 2029. Interest is payable on a semi-annual basis
beginning March 1, 2002.

During 2001, Detroit Edison entered into a financing arrange-
ment for certain equipment with a value of approximately
$90 million. The arrangement has an implicit interest rate of
7.6% with a term of approximately nine years.

During 2001, MichCon issued $200 million of 6.125% senior
secured notes due 2008. Interest is payable on a semi-annual
basis beginning March 1, 2002. Buring 2001, MichCon paid
the entire outstanding balance of a $40 million mortgage
bond that was due in 2021.




NOTE 11 — SHORT-TERM CREDIT
ARRANGEMENTS AND BORROWINGS

During 2001, the Company, Detroit Edison and MichCon
entered into a bank facility arrangement used to support
commercial paper in the amounts of $800 million, $300 million
and $300 million, respectively. Commercial paper is usually
issued in lieu of an equivalent amount of borrowings under
these lines of credit. Amounts outstanding under this facility
at December 31, 2001, were $423 million at the Company and
$254 million at MichCon. At December 31, 2000, $45 million of
commercial paper was outstanding at Detroit Edison under
a prior facility. The weighted average interest rates for
short-term borrowings at December 31, 2001 and 2000

were 2.8% and 6.6%, respectively.

At December 31, 2001, the Company had letters of credit
from a bank that allowed the Company to use approximately
$88 million of cash previously classified as restricted

on the Company's statement of financia! position. There
were no outstanding draws on these letters of credit at
December 31, 2001.

Detroit Edison also has a $200 million short-term financing
agreement secured by its customer accounts receivable
and unbilled revenues portfolio under which there were
no outstanding amounts at December 31, 2001. There was
$200 million outstanding at December 31, 2000, with a
weighted average interest rate of 6.8%.

During 2001, DTE Capital was merged into the Company. At
December 31, 2000, DTE Capital had $258 million of commercial
paper outstanding, with a weighted average interest rate of 7.7%.

NOTE 12 - CAPITAL AND OPERATING LEASES

Lessee — The Company, Detroit Edison, Enterprises and
MichCon lease various assets under capital and operating
leases including lake vessels, locomotives and coal cars,
office buildings, a parking structure, a warehouse, computers,
vehicles and other equipment. The lease arrangements
expire at various dates through 2016, with renewa! aptions
extending beyand that date. Portions of the office buildings
and parking structure are subleased to various tenants.

In July 2001, Detroit Edison terminated its nuclear fuel
financing arrangement and purchased the leased nuclear
fuel for $79 million.

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable

leases at December 31, 2001 were:
Capital Operating

{in Millions) leases Leases
2002 $ 21 $ 19
2003 15 18
2004 12 16
2005 12 13
2006 13 9
2007 and thereafter 74 27
Total minimum lease payments 147 $ 102
Less imputed interest {44)
Present value of net minimum

lease payments 103
Less current portion {14)
Noncurrent portion $ &

Total minimum lease payments for operating leases have
not been reduced by future minimum sublease rentals
totaling $12.7 million under non-cancelable subleases
expiring at various dates to 2008.

Rental expenses for operating leases were $19 million,
$13 million and $5 million for 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Lessor — MichCon leases a portion of its pipeline system

to the Vector Pipeline Partnership through a capital lease
arrangement that expires in 2020, with renewal options
extending for five years. The components of the net investment
in the capital lease at December 31, 2001 follows:

fin Millions)
2002 $ 9
2003 9
2004 3
2005 g
2006 3
Thereafter 125
Total minimum future lease receipts 170
Residual value of leased pipeline 40
Less — unearned income {125}
Net investment in capital lease 85
Less — current portion {1
$§ &

NOTE 13 - FINANCIAL AND OTHER
DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

In June 1998, the FASB issued SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” SFAS No. 133,
as amended, establishes accounting and reporting standards
for derivative instruments and for hedging activities. It requires
that all derivative instruments be recognized as either assets
or liabilities, measured at fair value. The accounting for
changes in fair value depends upon the purpose of the
derivative instrument and whether it is designated as a
hedge and qualifies for hedge accounting. To the extent
derivative instruments qualify as hedges and are designated
as hedges of the variability of cash flows associated with
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forecasted transactions, the effective portion of the gain

or loss on such derivative instruments is reported in other
comprehensive income. The ineffective portion, if any, is
reported in netincome. Such amounts reported in other
comprehensive income are reclassified into net income
when the forecasted transaction affects earnings. If a cash
flow hedge is discontinued because it is probable that the
forecasted transaction will not accur, the net gain or loss

is immediately reclassified into earnings. To the extent
derivative instruments qualify as hedges and are designated
as hedges of changes in fair value of an existing asset,
liability or firm commitment, the gain or lass on the hedging
instrument is recognized in earnings along with the changes
in fair value of the hedged asset, liability or firm commitment
attributable to the hedged risk.

SFAS No. 133 requires that as of the date of initial adoption,
the difference between the fair value of derivative instruments
and the previous carrying amount of those derivatives be
reported in net income or other comprehensive income, as
appropriate, as the cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle in accordance with Accounting Principles Board
{APB) Opinion 20, “Accounting Changes.”

As of January 1, 2001, the Company adopted SFAS No. 133,
as required. The financial statement impact of recording
the various SFAS No. 133 transactions at January 1, 2001
was as follows:;

Financiz] Statement Line tem Increase
{in Millions) {Decrease)
Assets from risk management and trading activities S 26
Liabilities from risk management and trading activites § 85
Deferred income taxes payable $ (20
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle:

Other comprehensive loss $ 4

Netincome $ 3

The Company's primary market risk exposures are associated
with interest rates and commuodity prices. The Company has
risk management policies to monitor and assist in mitigating
these market risks and uses derivative instruments to manage
some of the expasures. Except for the activities of the
Wholesale Marketing & Trading segment, the Company

does not hold or issue derivative instruments for trading
purposes. All derivatives are recorded at fair value and
shown as “assets or liabilities from risk management

and trading activities” in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The FASB continues to develop interpretive guidance

for SFAS No. 133. Accordingly, any future interpretations of
SFAS No. 133 may impact the Company’s ultimate application
of the standard.
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RISK MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

Credit Rislk

The Company is exposed to credit risk in the event of
nonperformance by customers or counterparties of its
contractual obligations. The Company maintains credit
policies with regard to its customers and counterparties
that management believes significantly minimize overall
credit risk. These policies include an evaluation of patential
customers’ and counterparties’ financial condition and
credit rating, collateral requirements or other credit
enhancements such as letters of credit or guarantees,
and the use of standardized agreements which allow for
the netting or offsetting of positive and negative exposures
associated with a single counterparty.

(nterest Rate Risk

During 2000, the Company entered into a series of forward-
starting interest rate swaps and treasury locks in order to
limit its sensitivity to market interest rate risk associated with
its issuance of long-term debt used to finance the acquisition
of MCN Energy. Such instruments were formally designated
as cash flow hedges. In the first quarter of 2001, a loss of
approximately $5 million was reclassified from accumulated
other comprehensive loss into earnings, since management
determined it was probable that certain transactions
associated with the issuance of long-term debt would not
occur within the time frame originally anticipated. This loss
was reported as a component of interest expense within

the consolidated statement of operations. In May 2001, the
Company issued long-term debt, and terminated these hedges
at a cost of $83 million, with the corresponding loss on these
instruments included in other comprehensive loss. During the
next 30 years, amounts recorded in other comprehensive loss
will be reclassified to interest expense as the related interest
affects earnings. At December 31, 2001, the estimated amount
of existing losses that is expected to be reclassified into earnings
within the next 12 months is approximately $10 million.

Commadity Price Jisk

Electric Utility - Detroit Edison uses forward energy,
capacity, and futures contracts to manage the risk of
fluctuations in the market price of electricity and natural gas.
Certain of these contracts have been formally designated as
cash flow hedges of the forecasted purchase of power and
natural gas. For the year ended December 31, 2001, Detroit
Edison recorded a loss of $23 million, net of tax, in other
comprehensive ioss for these hedges. Amounts recorded
in other comprehensive loss will be reclassified to fuel,
purchased power and gas expense as the forecasted
purchases of electricity and natural gas affect earnings. At
December 31, 2001, the estimated net amount of existing
loss expected to be reclassified into earnings within the




next 12 months is approximately $21 million. The maximum
length of time over which Detroit Edison is hedging its
exposure to the variability of future cash flows is two years.
Ineffectiveness recognized in these hedging relationships
was immaterial for the year ended December 31, 2001.

Certain of Detroit Edison’s forward electric contracts are
considered “normal purchases and sales” and therefore
are excluded from the scope of SFAS No. 133.

In June 2001, the FASB provided guidance on the
implementation of SFAS Na. 133 regarding certain contracts
in the power generation industry. In June 2001, issue No. C15,
“Scope Exceptions: Normal Purchases and Normal Sales
Exception for Option-Type Contracts and Forward Contracts
in Electricity,” was issued. The FASB concluded that
because electricity cannot be readily stored in significant
guantities, and the entity engaged in selling electricity is
obligated to maintain sufficient capacity to meet the electricity
needs of its customer base, an option-like contract for the
purchase of electricity that meets certain criteria is eligible
for the normal purchases and sales exception. Detroit Edison
adopted this new guidance on July 1, 2001, as required,
classified certain contracts as normal, and began amortizing
the previously recorded liability on option-like contracts
over their remaining lives. In December 2001, the FASB
issued revisions to issue No. C15 that are effective in April
2002. The revised guidance differentiates characteristics of
traditional capacity contracts used by electric utilities to
meet electric load and financial options an electricity.
Traditional capacity contracts are eligible for settlement
accounting under the normal purchases and sales exception.
Financial options on electricity will not be eligible for settlement
accounting. Financia! options on electricity will be recorded
at fair value on the statement of financial position using
mark-to-market accounting.

Gas Utility - MichCon has firm-priced contracts for a
substantial portion of its expected gas supply requirements
through 2002. These contracts are designated and qualify
for the “normal purchases” exception under SFAS No.133.
Accordingly, MichCon does not account for such contracts
as derivatives.

Non-regulated Operations — Natural gas forwards, futures,
options and swap agreements are used to manage exposure
to the risk of market price and volume fluctuations on gas
sale and purchase contracts, gas production, and gas inven-
tories. Enterprises has determined that this risk minimization
strategy will be accounted for by marking to market its
commodity forwards, financial derivatives, and corresponding
physical positions so there are substantial offsetting
amounts. This fair value accounting better aligns financial
reparting with the way such business is managed and its

performance measured. Additionally, certain transportation
contracts are considered derivatives and marked to market
under SFAS No. 133. Unrealized gains and losses resulting
from marking to market commodity-related derivatives are
recorded as an adjustment to revenues.

Although it attempts to maintain a balanced or fiat book from
an economic standpoint, Enterprises experiences earnings
volatility as a result of its owned gas reserves, as well as
from open positions related to its long-term transportation
and storage assets.Gas produced from cwned reserves does
not meet the definition of a derivative under SFAS No. 133.

TRADING ACTIVITIES

Wholesale Marketing & Trading markets and trades
electricity and natural gas physical products and financial
instruments, and provides risk management services utilizing
energy commadity derivative instruments, which include
futures, exchange-traded and over-the-counter options, and
forward purchase and sales contracts. Contracts used in
trading activities are accounted for under Emerging Issues
Task Force Issue No. 38-10, “Accounting for Energy Trading
Activities and Risk Management Activities.” Accordingly, rla
such contracts are marked to market with unrealized gains Y :
and losses recorded in revenues. All derivatives are >
recorded at fair value and shown as “assets or liabilities
from risk management and trading activities” in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Contracts
for physical delivery are recarded gross in revenues

or expenses, as appropriate. Gains or losses

on financial contracts are recorded netin the
consolidated statement of operations.

FAIR VALUE OF OTHER FINANGIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair value of financial instruments is determined by :
reference to various market data and other valuation tech- A
niques as appropriate. The carrying amount of financial
instruments, except for long-term debt and preferred
securities, approximate fair value. The estimated fair

value of total long-term debt at December 31, 2001 and

2000 was $8.2 billion and $4.2 billion, respectively, compared
to the carrying amount of $8.1 billion and $4.1 billion,
respectively. The estimated fair value of preferred securities
at December 31, 2001 was $276 million compared to the
carrying amount of $274 million.
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NOTE 14 ~ COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Pzrsonal Property Taxes

Detroit Edison, MichCon and other Michigan utilities have
asserted that Michigan's valuation tables result in the
substantial overvaluation of utility personal property.
Valuation tables established by the Michigan State Tax
Commission (STC) are used to estimate the reduction in
value of personal property based on the property's age. In
November 1999, the STC approved new valuation tables that
more accurately recognize the value of a utility’s personal
property. The new tables became effective in 2000 and are
being used for current year assessments in most jurisdictions.
However, several local taxing jurisdictions have taken legal
action attempting to prevent the STC from implementing
the new valuation tables and have continued to prepare
assessments based on the superseded tables. The legal
actions regarding the appropriateness of the new tables
are currently before the Michigan Tax Tribunal (MTT) which
issued an order in June 2000 stating that the tables are
presumed to be correct, thus assigning the burden of
proving otherwise to the taxing jurisdictions. The hearing
before the MTT cancluded in June 2001, with the STC
subsequently filing a mation for summary judgment.

All briefs related to that motion have been filed, and the
parties now await the MTT decision.

Detroit Edison and MichCon accrue property tax expense
based on the new tables. Detroit Edison and MichCon
will seek to apply the new tables retroactively and to
ultimately settle the pending tax appeals related to 1997
through 1999. This is a solution supported by the STC in
the past. The legal action, along with possible additional
appeals by local taxing jurisdictions, is expected to delay
any recoveries realized by Detroit Edison and MichCon
related to the new valuation tables.

Gas Environmental Matters

'Former manufactured gas plant sites — Prior to the construction
of major natural gas pipelines, gas for heating and other uses
was manufactured from processes involving coal, coke or
oil. Enterprises owns, or previously owned, 17 such former
manufactured gas plant (MGP) sites.

During the mid-1980's, Enterprises conducted preliminary
environmental investigations at former MGP sites, and some
contamination related to the by-products of gas manufacturing
was discovered at each site. The existence of these sites
and the results of the environmental investigations have
been reported to the Michigan Department of Environmental
Quality (MDEQ). None of these former MGP sites is on the
National Priorities List prepared by the U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency {EPA).

Enterprises is involved in an administrative proceeding before
the EPA regarding one of the former MGP sites. Enterprises
has executed an order with the EPA, pursuant to which
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Enterprises is legally obligated to investigate and remediate
the MGP site. Enterprises is remediating eight of the former
MGP sites and conducting more extensive investigations at
three other former MGP sites. In 1998, Enterprises received
state closure of one of the former MGP sites. Additionally,
the MDEQ has determined with respect to two other former
MGP sites that Enterprises is not a responsible party for the
purpose of assessing remediation expenditures. In September
2001, Enterprises was advised of one additional MGP site for
which it has some responsibility. After review of the extent of
the necessary environmental clean-up required, remediation
costs for this site are not expected to exceed $500,000.

In 1984, Enterprises established a $12 million reserve for
environmental investigation and remediation. During 1993,
MichCon received MPSC approval of a cost deferral and
rate recovery mechanism for investigation and remediation
costs incurred at former MGP sites in excess of this reserve.

Enterprises employed outside consultants to evaluate
remediation alternatives for these sites, {0 assist in estimating
its potential liabilities and to review its archived insurance
policies. The findings of these investigations indicate that the
estimated total expenditures for investigation and remediation
activities for these sites could range from $30 million to

$170 million based on undiscounted 1995 costs. As a result of
these studies, Enterprises accrued an additional liability and
a corresponding regulatory asset of $35 million during 1995.

During 2001, Enterprises spent $4 million investigating and
remediating these former MGP sites. At December 31, 2001,
the reserve balance was $25 million of which $5 million was
classified as current. Any significant change in assumptions,
such as remediation technigues, nature and extent of
contamination and regulatory requirements, could impact
the estimate of remedial action costs for the sites and,
therefore, have an effect on the Company's financial position
and cash flows. However, management believes that the
cost deferral and rate recovery mechanism approved by

the MPSC will prevent environmental costs from having a
material adverse impact on the Company's results of operations.

Commitments

Detroit Edison has an Energy Purchase Agreement for the
purchase of steam and electricity from the Detroit Resource
Recovery Facility. Under the Agreement, Detroit Edison will
purchase steam through 2008 and electricity through June
2024. in 1996, a special charge to income was recorded that
included a reserve for steam purchase commitments in
excess of replacement casts from 1997 through 2008. The
reserve for steam purchase commitments is being amortized
to fuel, purchased power and gas expense with noncash
accretion expense heing recorded through 2008, During
2001, the reserve for future steam purchase commitments
was reduced by $22 million due to changes in estimated
future replacement costs. Purchases of steam and electricity




were approximately $41 million, $35 million and $35 million
for 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Annual steam and
electric purchase commitments are approximatety $40 million,
341 million, $42 million, $44 million and $45 million for 2002,
2003, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

The EPA has issued ozane transport regulations and final
new air quality standards relating to ozone and particulate
air pollution. In September 1998, the EPA issued a State
Implementation Plan (SIP) call, giving states a year to develop
new regulations to limit nitrogen oxide emissions because of
their contribution to ozone formation. Detroit Edison has spent
approximately $221 million through December 2001 and
estimates that it will incur approximately $400 million to
$500 million of future capital expenditures over the next
three years to comply. In March 2000, the U.S. Court of
Appeals ruled in favor of the EPA's SIP call regulations.

The new air quality standards have been upheld in legal
challenges in the U.S. Court of Appeals, but the U.S.
Supreme Court has agreed to hear the appeal. Until the
legal issues are resolved, management is unable to predict
the full impact of the new air quality standards. Under the
June 2000 Michigan restructuring legislation, beginning
January 1, 2004, annual return of and on this capital expendi-
ture, in excess of current depreciation levels, would be
deferred in ratemaking, until after the expiration of the rate
cap period, presently expected to end December 31, 2005.

In 1997, Enterprises’ 50%-owned partnership, Washington

10 Storage Partnership (W-10), entered into a leveraged
fease transaction to finance the conversion of a depleted
natural gas reservoir into a 42 Bcf storage facility. The storage
facility began operations in mid-1999 and cost $160 million to
develop. Enterprises has entered into a contract with W-10
to market 100% of the capacity of the storage field through
2029. Under the terms of the marketing contract, Enterprises
is obligated to generate sufficient revenues to cover W-10's
lease payments and certain operating costs, which average
approximately $15 million annually.

To ensure a reliable supply of natural gas at competitive
prices, Enterprises has entered into long-term purchase and
transportation contracts with various suppliers and producers.
in general, purchases are under fixed price and volume
contracts or formulas based on market prices. Enterprises

. has firm purchase commitments through 2015 for approximately
707 Bcf of gas. Enterprises expects that sales, based on
warmer-than-normal weather, will exceed its minimum
purchase commitments. Enterprises has long-term
transportation and storage contracts with various companies
expiring on various dates through the year 2016. Enterprises
is also committed to pay demand charges of approximately
$89 million during 2002 related to firm purchase and
transportation agreements. Of this total, approximately

$37 million relates to MichCon.

The Company has also entered into long-term fuel supply
commitments of approximately $1 billion at December 31, 2001.
The Company expects that its 2002 capital expenditures will
approximate $950 million. Certain commitments have been
made in connection with such capital expenditures.

Other Contingencies

Electricity and gas is purchased from and sold to numerous
companies operating in the steel, automotive, energy and
retail industries. A number of customers have filed for
bankruptcy in 2001, including certain Enron Corporation
affiliates. Certain DTE Energy subsidiaries had open transac-
tions under a variety of agreements with bankrupt Enron
affiliates, and such subsidiaries had an aggregate net liability
of $24 million to Enron. There are various netting agreements
with Enron affiliates. Internal and external counsel are working
to determine the Company’s rights within these agreements.
The Company has not reserved for any exposure, in addition
to the net liahilities already recorded, as management
cannot estimate a probable loss exposure and currently
does not believe the resolution of this matter will have

a material impact to the Company.

The Company is involved in certain legal {including
commercial matters), administrative and environmental
proceedings before various courts, arbitration panels
and governmental agencies concerning claims
arising in the ordinary course of business. These
proceedings include certain contract disputes,
environmental reviews and investigations, and pending
judicial matters. Management cannot predict the

final disposition of such proceedings. Management
regularly reviews legal matters and records provisions
for claims that are considered probable of loss. The
resolution of pending proceedings is not expected to
have a material effect on the Company'’s financial
statements in the period they are resolved.

See Notes 4 and 5 for a discussion of contingencies
related to Regulatory Matters and Fermi 2.

NOTE 15 — RETIREMENT BENEFITS AND
TRUSTEED ASSETS

Pension Plan Benefits

The Company has defined benefit retirement pians for all
eligible union and nonunion employees. Prior to December 31,
2001, the Company had three separate defined benefit
retirement plans. Effective December 31, 2001, two of the
defined benefit retirement plans merged into one plan.

All of the plans are noncontributory, cover substantially

all employees and provide retirement benefits based on

the employees’ years of benefit service, average final
compensation and age at retirement. The Company’s policy
is to fund pension cost calculated under the projected unit
credit actuarial cost method.
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Net pension cost for the years ended December 31 includes
the following components:

fin Millions) 2007 2000 1999
Service Cost $ o $ 3% § 35
Interest Cost 160 107 92
Expected Return on Plan Assets (=93} (139) (124)
Amortization of

Prior service cost 10 10 5

Net transition asset {5} (4) (4)
Special Termination

Benefits {Note 3) 187 - ~
Net Pension Cost $ 18 $ 9 § 4

The following tahle sets forth a reconciliation of the obligations,
assets and funded status of the plans as well as the amounts
recognized as prepaid pension cost in the consolidated
statement of financial position at December 31;

{in Millions) 2001 2000
Accumulated Benefit Obligation
atthe End of the Period 8§ 2023 $§ 1408

Projected Benefit Obligation at the

Beginning of the Period $ EL § 1,457
Service Cost €D 35
Interest Cost 163 107
Actuarial Loss 123 21
Special Termination Benefits (Note 3} 187 -
Benefits Paid WA) (82)
MCN Energy Acquisition &7 -
Plan Amendments {£3) 2
Projected Benefit Obligation at the

End of the Period $ 2296 § 1,540
Plan Assets at Fair Value at the

Beginning of the Period $ 0496 $ 1,585
Actual Return on Plan Assets 183) (87)
Company Contributions 33 -
Benefits Paid 223) (82)
MCN Energy Acquisition 87 -
Plan Assets at Fair Value at the

End of the Period § 2°82 8 1416
Funded Status of the Plans §  (EBe (124)
Unrecognized

Net loss 42 12

Prior service cost 3 85

Net transition asset ) (7)
Prepaid Pension Cost § 433§ 66

Assumptions used in determining the projected benefit
obligation at December 31 were as follows:

2271 2000 1999
Discount rate 1.2%% 7.5% 1.5%
Annual increase in future
compensation levels 4,0 4.0 4.0
Expected long-term rate of
return on Plan assets 3.3 9.5 9.5
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There are several supplemental nonqualified, noncontributory,
retirement benefit plans for certain management employees.

The Company also sponsors defined contribution retirement
savings plans. Participation in one of these plans is available
to substantially all union and nonunion employees. The
Company matches employee contributions up to certain
predefined limits based upon salary and years of credited
service. The cost of these plans was $26 million in 2001,

$22 million in 2000 and $21 million in 1999.

Other Pestretiremant Bensfits

The Company provides certain postretirement health care
and life insurance benefits for retired employees who may
become eligible for these benefits if they reach retirement
age while working for the Company.

Net postretirement cost for the years ended December 31
includes the following components:

{in Millions) 2001 2000 1999
Service Cost $ 27 $ 2 $ 23
Interest Cost 67 48 41
Expected Return on Plan Assets 57) (46) (39)
Amortization of

Net loss 1 - -

Net transition obligation 20 20 21
Special Termination Benefits

(Note 3) £8 - -
Net Postretirement Cost $ 104 $ 44 3 46




The following table sets forth a reconciliation of the obligations,
assets and funded status of the plans as well as the amounts
recorded as accrued postretirement cost in the consolidated
statement of financial position at December 31:

(in Millions) 2001 2000
Accumulated Postretirement Benefit

Obligation at the Beginning of the Period $ 728 607
Service Cost 27 22
Interest Cost &7 48
Actuarial Loss 62 105
Special Termination Benefits (Note 3) £5 -
MCN Energy Acquisition 35 -
Plan Amendments (12} -
Benefits Paid {(E0 (31)
Accumulated Postretirement Benefit

Obligation at the End of the Period $ 1520 § 751
Plan Assets at Fair Value at the

Beginning of the Period § Ei7§ 501
Actual Return on Plan Assets (25} 2
Company Contributions 7 23
Benefits Paid (8 (9}
MCN Energy Acquisition 175 -
Plan Assets at Fair Value at the

End of the Period $ @4 $ 517
Funded Status of the Plans S I s (234

Unrecognized

Netloss 187 44
Prior service cost (:2) -
Net transition obligation 225 246

Accrued Postretirement

Asset (Liability) $ (1% 56

Assumptions used in determining the projected benefit
obligation at December 31 were as follows:

& 2000 1999
1.23% 7.5% 75%

Discount rate
Expected long-term rate of
return on Plan assets 23 9.0 9.0

Benefit costs were calculated assuming health care cost trend
rates beginning at 8.5% for 2002 and decreasing to 5% in 2008
and thereafter for persons under age 65 and decreasing from
9% to 5% for persons age 65 and over. A one-percentage-point
increase in health care cost trend rates would have increased
the aggregate of the service cost and interest cost components
of benefit costs by $17 million and would have increased the
accumulated benefit obligation by $142 million at December
31, 2001. A one-percentage-point decrease in the health care
cost trend rates would have decreased the aggregate of the
service cost and interest cost components of benefit costs
by $14 million and would have decreased the accumulated
benefit obligation by $118 million at December 31, 2001.

CGrantor Trust

MichCon maintains a Grantor Trust which invests in life
insurance contracts and income securities. Employees and
retirees have no right, title or interest in the assets of the
Grantor Trust, and MichCon can revoke the trust subject to
providing the MPSC with prior notification.

NOTE 16 ~ STOCK-BASED COMPENSATICN

The DTE Energy Company 2001 Stock Incentive Plan was
appraved by shareholders in 2001. The plan permits the grant
of incentive stock options, non-qualifying stock options,
stock awards, performance shares and performance units.
The maximum aggregate number of shares of common
stock that may be issued under this plan is 18 million
shares. Participants in the plan include employees of the
Company and its Board members. As of December 31, 2001,
no performance units have been granted under the plan.

Prior to 2001, stock options, stock awards and performance
shares were issued under the Long-Term Incentive Plan

adopted in 1995,

Catiens

Options are exercisable at a rate pursuant to the terms of the
individual stock option award agreements. The options will
expire 10 years after the date of the grant. The option exercise
price equals the fair market value of the stock on the date that
the option was granted. Stock option activity was as follows:

Naymbaer

N

of Qplicns

Weighted

bvzrege
Ixercise

Frize

Outstanding at January 1, 1999

(58,750 exercisable) 607,375
Granted 428,000
Exercised (11,675)
Canceled (24,625)

Outstanding at December 31, 1999

{194,371 exercisable) 999,075
Granted 2,023,400
Exercised {10,750}
Canceled (29,500}

Outstanding at December 31, 2000

(442,431 exercisable) 2,982,225
Granted 2,775,341
Exercised (402,442)
Canceled (73,500)

Qutstanding at December 31, 2001
(1,678,870 exercisable at a weighted
average exercise price of $35.45) 5,281,624

$33.70
$41.30
$30.99
$31.96

$37.03
$32.12
$28.50
841.14

$33.69
$42.74
83231
$36.26

$38.51
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The range of exercise prices for options outstanding at
December 31, 2001, was $27.62 to $46.63. The number, weighted
average exercise price and weighted average remaining
contractual life of options outstanding were as follows:

Weighted
Weighted Bwerage
Range of Average Remaining
Exercise Number Extercise Contraciual
Prices of Options Price Life
$27.62 - 338.04 1,987,067 $31.57 7.87 years
$38.60 - $42.44 1,277,887 $40.51 8.08 years
$42.60 - $43.85 918,650 $42.66 9.22 years
$45.28 - $46.63 1,098,020 $45.29 9.29 years
5,281,624 $38.51 8.45 years

The Company applies APB Opinion 25, “Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees.” Accordingly, no compensation expense
has been recorded for options granted. As required by SFAS
No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” the
Company has determined the pro forma information as if it
had accounted for its employee stock options under the fair
value methaod. The fair value for these options was estimated
at the date of grant using a modified Black/Scholes aption
pricing model — American style and the following weighted
average assumptions:

2000 2000 1999
Risk-free interest rate 5.40% 6.57% 5.64%
Dividend vield 4.73% 6.48% 4.95%
Expected volatility 19.78%  1851%  17.28%
Expected life 10years 10years 10years
Fair value per option $8.81 $5.19 $7.18

The pro forma effect of these options would be to reduce
pretax income by $14.4 million, $2.7 million, and $1.3 million
for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999,
respectively, and to reduce diluted earnings per share by
$0.06, $0.02, and $0.01 for the years ended December 31,
2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Stock Awards

Under the plan, stock awards are granted and restricted for
a period not exceeding four years. Certain shares are subject
to forfeiture if specified performance objectives are not met.
A participant will have all rights of a shareholder with respect
to a stock award, including the right to receive dividends and
vote the shares; provided, however, that during such period

(i) a participant may not sell, transfer, pledge, exchange or
otherwise dispose of shares granted pursuant to a stock
award; (ii) the Company shall retain custody of the certificates
evidencing shares granted pursuant to a stock award; and
{iii) the participant will deliver to the Company a stock power
with respect to each stock award.

The stock awards are recorded at cost, which approximates
the market value on the date of grant. The Company accounts
for stock awards as unearned compensation, which is
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reported as a reduction to common stock. The costis
amortized to compensation expense over the vesting period.
Stack award activity for the years ended December 31 was:

200 2000 1999

Restricted common shares

awarded 247,640 29,565 99,500

Weighted average market

price of shares awarded $ M35 § 3200 $ 4099

Compensation cost
charged against income
(in thousands)

$ 2484 § 1130 8 945

Performance Share Awards

Under the plan, performance shares means an award stated
with reference to a specified number of shares of common
stock that entitles the holder to receive a cash payment or
shares of common stock or a combination thereof. The final
number of shares of common stock awarded is determined
by the achievement of certain performance objectives, as
defined in the plan. The awards vest as of the end of a
specified period. Beginning with the grant date, the Company
accounts for performance share awards by accruing an
amount based on the following: (i) the number of shares
expected to be awarded based on the probable achievement
of certain performance objectives, (i) the market value of the
shares, and (iii) the vesting period. For the year ended
December 31, 2001, the Company accrued $1.2 million in
compensation expense related to performance share awards.

During the applicable restriction period, the recipient of a
performance share award has no shareholder rights until
common stack is actually distributed. However, recipients
will be paid an amount equal to the dividend equivalent on
such shares. Performance share awards are nontransferable
and are subject to risk of forfeiture. As of December 31, 2001,
there were 277,355 performance share awards outstanding.

NOTE 17 - SEGIVENT AND RELATED INFORMATION

The Company's reportable business segments are; Electric
Utility — Detroit Edison and ITC; Gas Utility — MichCon;
Wholesale Marketing & Trading, which consists of the
trading and marketing operations of DTE Energy Trading
and the natural gas trading and marketing operations of
Enterprises; Energy Services, which consists of various
businesses that develop and manage energy-related projects
and services; Non-regulated other, which represents the
operations of energy businesses primarily involved in emerging
technologies and various other non-regutated gas opera-
tions acquired with the MCN Energy merger; and Corporate
& Other, which includes expenses of the Company's
corporate operation. The income tax provisions or benefits
of DTE Energy’s subsidiaries are determined on an individual
company basis and recognize the tax benefit of alternate
fuels credits and net operating losses. The subsidiaries
record income tax payable to or receivable from




DTE Energy resulting from the inclusion of its taxable
income or loss in DTE Energy's consolidated tax return.
Inter-segment revenues are not material. Financial data for
business segments are as follows:

NOTE 18 — SUPPLEMENTARY QUARTERLY
FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

Quarterly earnings per share may not total for the years,
since quarterly computations are based on weighted
average common shares outstanding during each quarter.

{in Millions, except First

per share amounts)

Second
Quarter Quarter

Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter  Year

{in Millions) 200 2000 1999
Operating Revenues
Electric Utility § 4051 $ 4129 $ 4,047
Gas Utility 603 - -
Wholesale Marketing & Trading 2,580 985 251
Energy Services 577 472 418
Non-regulated other 137 92 39
Reconciliation and eliminations {39} (81) (27)
Consolidated $ 7849 $ 5597 § 4728
Depreciation, Depletion,

and Amortization
Electric Utility $ 684 $ 719 § 703
Gas Utility 0 - -
Wholesale Marketing & Trading 1 - -
Energy Services 42 34 31
Non-regulated other 17 5 1
Corporate & Other 3 - -
Consolidated $ 795 § 78 § 735
Interest Expense
Electric Utility $ 308 $ 277 § 284
Gas Utility 3 - -
Wholesale Marketing & Trading 13 - -
Energy Services 23 30 38
Non-regulated other 10 4 i
Corporate & Other 147 46 K
Reconciliation and eliminations {64) {21) {14)
Consolidated $ 488 $ 336 § 340
Income Tax Provision (Benefit)
Electric Utility $ 92 $ 172 8§ M
Gas Utility {20) - -
Wholesale Marketing & Trading 24 5 5
Energy Services {186) (141} (132}
Non-regulated other {5) (18) (12)
Corporate & Other (18} (9) {12)
Consolidated $ (110} § 9 $§ 60
Net Income
Electric Utility § 369 $ 427 § 434
Gas Utility 23 - -
Wholesale Marketing & Trading 44 10 8
Energy Services 124 109 84
Non-regulated other (6} (35) (23)
Corporate & Other {18} {27) (20
Merger and restructuring charges {(173) (16) -
MCN goodwill amortization {29) - ~
Consolidated $ 332 $ 468 S 483
Total Assets
Electric Utility $11,508 $10986 § 11,051
Gas Utility 2,520 - -
Wholesale Marketing & Trading 1,048 468 109
Energy Services 1,352 942 945
Non-regulated other 1,212 268 175
Corporate & Other 2,025 798 509
Reconciliation and eliminations {437) (808} (473)
Consolidated $19.228 $ 12656 $ 12316
Capital Expenditures
Electric Utility $ 712 $§ 587 $ 638
Gas Utility 69 - -
Wholesale Marketing & Trading - - -
Energy Services 258 100 95
Non-regulated other 57 62 6
Consolidated $ 108 $ 749 $§ 739

2001
Operating Revenues  § 1,842
Operating Income (Loss) 244
Net Income (Loss)

before accounting change 135
Net Income (Loss) 138
Basic Earnings {Loss)

per Share before

accounting change .96
Diluted Earnings (Loss)

per Share before

$ 1790 $ 2081 $2136 $ 7,849
(88) 212 328 636
(87) 63 218 329
(87) 63 218 332

{.60) .38 1.35 2.15

accounting change .95 (.60) .38 1.34 214
2000
Operating Revenues  $ 1,182 $ 1,428 $ 1,547 § 1440 $ 5597
Operating Income 215 203 172 240 830
Net Income 17 108 104 139 468
Basic and Diluted

Earnings per Share 81 .76 13 97 3.27
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D=
Statistical REWU EW
(Doliars in Millions, Except Common Share Data) 2001 2000 1999 1998
Qperating Revenues
Electric Utility
Residential $ 1,288 $ 1,265 $ 1,300 $ 1,283
Commercial 1,333 1,670 1,629 1,553
Industrial 773 848 809 753
Wholesale and Other 447 346 309 343
Total Electric Utility 4,031 4129 4,047 3,902
Gas Utility 6C3 - - -
Non-regulated 3,195 1,468 681 319
Total $ 7049 $ 5597 $ 4728 $ 4,221
Net Income® $ 530 8 484 $ 483 $ 443
Eleetric Sales (Millions of kWh)
Residential 14,503 13,903 14,064 13,752
Commercial 18,777 19,762 19,546 18,897
Industrial 14,430 16,090 15,647 14,700
Other 2,538 2,653 2,595 2,357
Total system 50,248 52,408 51,852 43,706
Wholesale 868 2,592 3,672 5,207
Total 51,116 55,000 55,524 54,913
Electric Custemers at Yeer End (Thousands)
Residential 1,938 1,922 1,904 1,884
Commercial 184 185 182 181
Industrial 1 1 i 1
Other 2 2 2 2
Total 2,123 2,110 2,089 2,068
Fimancial Position at Vear Znd
Net property $ 9543 $ 7387 $ 7148 3 6,943
Total assets 19,228 12,656 12,316 12,088
Long-term debt, including capital leases 7.654 4,039 4,091 4,323
Total shareholders’ equity £,3%9 4,009 3,909 3,698
Common Share Data
Earnings per common share — diluted* S 3.48 $ 3.39 $ 3.33 3 3.05
Dividends declared $ 2.03 $ 2.06 $ 2.06 $ 2.06
Average shares outstanding — diluted {millions) 154 143 145 145
Return on average common equity* 12.27% 12.28% 12.75% 12.25%
Book value per share $ 2848 $ 2814 $ 2675 $ 2549
Market price: High 6793 41.25 44 .69 43,25
Low 33.13 28.44 31.06 33.50
Year end 47.94 38.94 31.63 43.06
Miscellancous Financial Dala
Cash flow from operations 3 811 $§ 1,015 $ 1,084 $ 834
Capital expenditures 1,028 749 739 589
Miscellanzous Operating Data
System peak demand (MW) 11,880 10,919 11,018 10,704
Employees at year end 11,830 9,144 8,886 8,781

* Amounts have been adjusted to exclude merger and restructuring charges and goodwill amortization totaling
$204 million in 2001 and $16 million in 2000.
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1997 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992 1991

$ 1179 $ 1198 § 12 $ 1,136 $ 1,126 $ 1,098 $ 1,155
1,501 1,506 1,496 1,473 1,428 1,438 1,41

726 731 728 136 720 749 124
251 207 199 174 281 213 302
3,657 3,642 3,634 3519 3,555 3,558 3,592
107 3 2 - ~ - -

$§ 3764 $ 3645 $ 3636 $ 3,519 $ 3,555 $ 3,558 $ 3,592
$ 417 $ 309 $ 406 $ 390 $ 491 $ 558 8 535
12,898 12,949 13,006 12,170 12,033 11,309 12,222
17,997 17,706 17,41 17,042 15,996 15,384 15,571
14,345 14,062 13,825 13,356 12,618 11,827 11,564
1,855 1,680 1,671 1,586 2,318 2171 1,692
47,095 46,407 45,973 44,154 42,965 40,697 41,049
3,541 2,046 2,969 1,978 3,611 3,204 5,534
50,642 48,453 48,942 46,132 46,576 43,901 46,583
1,870 1,847 1,825 1,805 1,790 1,778 1,

178 175 174 172 171 169 168

1 1 1 1 1 1 1

2 2 2 2 2 2 2

2,051 2,025 2,002 1,980 1,964 1,950 1,942

$ 8934 $ 8833 $ 8823 $ 8,925 $ 8,900 $ 9,024 $ 9,002
1,223 11,015 11,131 10,993 11,135 10,309 10,464
3,914 3,894 3.884 3,951 3,972 4,129 4,388
3,706 3,588 3,763 3,706 3,677 3,448 3,201
§ 288 $ 213 $ 2.80 $ 2.67 $ 3.34 $ 3.79 $ 3.64
$ 2.06 $ 2.06 $ 2.06 $ 2.06 $ 2.06 $ 1.98 $ 1.88
145 145 145 146 147 147 147
12.03% 8.87% 11.85% 11.64% 15.23% 18.56% 19.55%

$ 2451 $ 2369 $ 2362 $ 22.89 $ 22.34 $ 21.13 $ 19.32
34.75 37.25 34.88 30.25 37.13 35.25 35.38
26.13 27.63 2575 24.25 29.88 30.25 21.75
34.69 32.38 34.50 26.13 30.00 32.75 34.75

$ 905 $ 1079 $ 913 $ 923 $ 1,110 $ 1,063 $ 952
484 531 454 366 396 416 272
10,305 10,337 10,043 9,684 9,362 8,704 8,980
8,732 8,526 8,340 8,494 8919 9,183 9,357
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Other Information About TE ENEE&@V

Warket for the Company's Commen Equity and Related
Shareholder Walters

DTE Energy’s common stock is listed on the New York Stock
Exchange and the Chicago Stock Exchange {symbol DTE).
The following table indicates the reported high and low sales
prices of DTE Energy common stock on the composite tape
of the New York Stock Exchange and dividends paid per
share for each guarterly period during the past two years:

Dividends
Paid

Calendar Quarter High Lowy Per Share
2001 First $ 40200 $ 33125 $ 0515
Second 47130 39.790 0.515

Third 47.040 41.300 0515

Fourth 45.000 39.900 0515

2000 First $ 41250 $ 28438 $ 0515
Second 35938 28.875 0.515

Third 40.250 30.438 0515

Fourth 39.313 34.938 0515

As of Dec. 31, 2001, 161,133,959 shares of the Company's
common stock were outstanding. These shares were held
by a total of 114,556 shareholders.

The amount of future dividends will depend on the
company’'s earnings, financial condition and other factors,
inctuding the effects of utility restructuring and the
transition to competition.

Distribution of Qwnership of DTE Energy Commen Stock
as of Dee. 39, 2001:

Annual Meeting of Sharcholders

The 2002 Annual Meeting of DTE Energy Shareholders will
be held at 10 a.m., Detroit time, Wednesday, April 24, 2002,
at the DTE Energy Building, 660 Plaza Drive, Detroit.

Corporate Address

DTE Energy

2000 2nd Ave., Detroit, M1 48226-1279
Telephone: 313.235.4000

Web site: www.dteenergy.com

Independent Auditers

Deloitte & Touche LLP
600 Renaissance Center, Suite 900, Detroit, M| 48243-1704

Form 10-K

Copies of Form 10-K, Securities and Exchange
Commission Annual Report, are available.
Reguests should be directed to:

Susan M. Beale

Vice President and Corporate Secretary
DTE Energy

2000 2nd Ave., Detroit, M| 48226-1279

Transler Agent

The Detrait Edison Company
2000 2nd Ave., Detroit, MI 48226-1279
Shareholder Services: 800.551.5009

Registrar of Stock

The Detroit Edison Company
2000 2nd Ave., Detroit, M1 48226-1279
DTE Energy common stock

Other Shareholder Information

As a service to shareholders of record, DTE Energy offers
direct deposit of dividend payments. Payments can be
electronically transferred directly to the bank or savings
and loan account of choice on the payment date. Please
write to the address below, or call 800.551.5009 to receive
an authorization form to request direct deposit of
dividend payments.

DTE Energy
c¢/o Detroit Edison, Shareholder Services, 434 W.C.B.
2000 2nd Ave., Detroit, M 48226-1279

Type of Qwner Owners Shares
Individuals 58,190 15,800,699
Joint Accounts 44,083 17,967,098
Trust Accounts 11,187 8,160,429
Nominees 25 102,923,585
Institutions/Foundations 153 68,209
Brokers/Security Dealers 8 22,436
Others g10 16,191,503

Total 114,556 161,133,959
State and Country Owners Shares
Michigan 58,200 23,245,865
Florida 6,995 3,078,189
Califarnia 5,775 1,984,612
New York 4,706 120,124,783
iinois 4415 1,556,711
Ohio 3,595 1,205,700
44 Other States 30,409 9,803,364
Foreign Countries 4561 134,735

Total 114,556 161,133,959
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W @Eﬁ?}@@ Our Industry Uses

Colke and Goke Battery Quens

Raw coal is heated to high temperatures in ovens to drive
off impurities, leaving a carbon residue called coke. Coke is
combined with iron ore to create a high metallic iron that is
used to produce steel. A series of coke ovens configured
in a module is referred to as a battery.

Distributed Generation (DG)

Electric energy produced at or close to the point of use, in
contrast to central station generation which generally
produces electricity at large power plants and transmits
and distributes power over long distances. DG includes
fuel cells, small gas turbine engines called micro-turbines,
and other devices capable of producing 2 kilowatts to

1 megawatt of power.

Customer Choice

The choice programs are statewide initiatives giving
customers in Michigan the option to choose alternative
suppliers for electricity and gas.

Energy Management Businesses

DTE Energy’s non-regulated businesses spanning fossil
fuels, natural gas, power generation, landfill gas recovery,
energy trading and on-site energy services. The
company’s non-regulated energy technologies subsidiary
is not considered an energy management business.

Fossil Fleat

All of a company’s plants using coal, oil, gas or other fossil
fuel as their source of energy.

Gate Station

A facility at which natural gas pressures are lowered,
odorant is added and gas is transferred from a transmission
line to a distribution system for supply in a defined
service area.

Independent Power Producer (IPP)

A company or individual that is not directly regulated as a
public utility. These entities produce power far their own
use and/or sell it to regultated utilities.

Midwest Independent System Operator (MISO)

MISO is the first regional transmission operator in the
country approved by the Federal Energy Regulatory

©2002 DTE Energy Company,
all rights reserved.
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Commission (FERC). MISO serves as an agent for its

19 transmission-owning members and spans nearly
73,000 miles of electric transmission lines over a 15-state
area and parts of Canada.

Pealing Plamnt
A power plant brought online at times of peak demand.

Power Gensration

Generation of energy for sale on the open market
and/or to energy traders.

Power Supply and Gas Cost Recovery Wechanism

A power supply fuel clause adjustment mechanism
allowed Detroit Edison to recover through rates its fuel,
fuel-related and purchased power electric expenses.
The clause was suspended under Michigan’'s new
restructuring legislation signed into law June 5, 2000,
which lowered and froze customer rates. In January
2002, MichCon reinstated a previously suspended fuel
clause gas cost recovery mechanism. This permits it to
pass the cost of natural gas to its customers and
generate profit only from a delivery charge.

Random Qutage Rate

The unscheduled time a generating unit is
unavailable to produce electricity, expressed in
a percentage.

Securitization

A mechanism used by Detroit Edison to refinance specific
assets and costs at lower interest rates through the sale
of rate reduction bonds.

Stranded Casts

Costs incurred by utilities in order to serve customers in
a regulated environment, but which may not be
recoverable if customers switch to alternative

suppliers of electricity and gas.

Synfuels

Synthetic fuels are made by capturing fine particles of
coal and processing it into a product that is burned either
to produce energy at power plants, or to fuel steel plant
coke hatteries.
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